
                  Glen Spieth   
Joan Cooley 

Bethene Campbell   
Christina Manetti 

SPECIAL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA         

LANDMARKS & HERITAGE ADVISORY BOARD 
THURSDAY     February 9, 2023   AGENDA 
6:00 PM Virtual Hybrid Meeting – American Lake Conference Room 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- -------------------------- 
Until further notice, residents can also virtually attend Landmark and Heritage Advisory Board (LHAB) 
meetings by watching them live on the city’s YouTube channel: 
 https://www.youtube.com/user/cityoflakewoodwa.  Those who do not have access to YouTube can call in 
to listen by telephone at +1 (253) 215- 8782 and by entering Webinar ID: # 858 4520 5947 
 
To participate in Public Comment and/or Public Testimony: 
Public Comments and Public Testimony on Public Hearings will be accepted by mail, email or by live virtual comment. Send 
comments by mail or email to Karen Devereaux, LHAB Clerk, at 6000 Main Street SW Lakewood, WA 98499 or 
mailto:kdevereaux@cityoflakewood.us.  Comments received up to one hour before the meeting will be provided to the 
Landmarks and Heritage Advisory Board electronically. 
 
Virtual Comments: If you would like to provide live Public Comments or Public Testimony during the meeting, you will need to 
join the Zoom meeting as an attendee by calling by telephone Dial +1(253) 215- 8782 and enter webinar ID:  
# 858 4520 5947or by visiting https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85845205947  
 
By Phone: For those participating by calling in by telephone (+1(253) 215- 8782 and enter webinar ID  
# 858 4520 5947 the Chair will call on you during the Public Comment and/or Public Hearings portions of the agenda. When 
you are unmuted please provide your name and city of residence. Each speaker will be allowed (3) three minutes to speak 
during the Public Comment and at each Public Hearing. 
 
By ZOOM: For those using the ZOOM link https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85845205947, upon entering the meeting, please enter 
your name or other chosen identifier. Use the “Raise Hand” feature to be called upon by the Chair during the Public Comments 
and/or Public Hearings portions of the agenda. When you are unmuted, please provide your name and city of residence. Each 
speaker will be allowed (3) three minutes to speak during the Public Comment and at each Public Hearing. 
 
Outside of Public Comments and Public Hearings, all attendees on ZOOM will continue to have the ability to virtually raise 
your hand for the duration of the meeting. You will not be acknowledged and your microphone will remain muted except for 
when you are called upon. 
 

1.   Call to Order 
 
2.   Meeting Protocol 

a. Roll Call 
b. Acceptance/Changes to Agenda 
c. Approval of Minutes from both September 22, 2022 and October 27, 2022  
d. Announcements 

 
3. Public Comments 
 
 
4. Public Hearings  

a. Lakewold Gardens: Carriage House Type II Certificate of Appropriateness  

1 of 55

https://www.youtube.com/user/cityoflakewoodwa
mailto:kdevereaux@cityoflakewood.us
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85845205947
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85845205947


 
5.   Reports by Historic Preservation Officer or Staff 

a. Lakewood Touring Map Update 
b. LHAB 2023 Workplan Update 
c. Heritage Tree Code Update 

 
6.  Unfinished Business  

a. Lakewood Touring Map – Next Steps Discussion  
 
7.   New Business 

a. LHAB Chair and Vic-Chair Nominations 
 

8. Next Meeting Scheduled TBD 
 
9.   Adjournment 
 
 
Members please contact Karen Devereaux at kdevereaux@cityoflakewood.us or 983-7767 by 
Tuesday prior to the meeting, if you are unable to attend. It is important to establish in advance 
whether or not there will be a quorum. Thank you. 

2 of 55



 

City of Lakewood  1                                       Landmarks & Heritage Advisory Board 
09/22/2022 Meeting    

 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 

        

 
 

LANDMARKS AND HERITAGE ADVISORY BOARD  

Thursday, September 22, 2022 Meeting Minutes  

ZOOM Meeting 

6000 Main Street SW 

Lakewood, WA  98499 

 

“The mission of the City of Lakewood  

Landmarks and Heritage Advisory Board is to  

preserve, protect, and promote the unique heritage and historic 

resources of the City of Lakewood” 

CALL TO ORDER                                                                                                                                                                                                        
Mr. Glen Spieth, Chair called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM.  
 
MEETING PROTOCOL                                                                                                                                                               
Roll Call                                                                                                                                                           
Landmarks & Heritage Advisory Board Members Present:  Glen Spieth, Chair;  
Beth Campbell, and Christina Manetti, Vice Chair 
Landmarks & Heritage Advisory Board Members Excused: Mark Hayes  
Landmarks & Heritage Advisory Board Members Absent:  Joan Cooley  
Staff Present: Courtney Brunell, Planning Manager and Josh Kubitza, Associate Planner 
Council Liaison to LHAB:  Councilmember Paul Bocchi (present) 
 
Acceptance/Changes to Agenda: None 
 
Approval of Minutes 
The minutes of the meeting held on August 25, 2022 were approved as 
written by voice vote, M/S/C Campbell/Manetti.  Motion to approve the 
minutes passed unanimously, 3-0.  
 
Announcements: Mr. Josh Kubitza, Associate Planner, reminded board members 
of the Joint City Council / Landmarks and Heritage Advisory Board meeting to be 
held on Monday, September 26 at 7:00 PM in the Council Chambers. The discussion 
will address the accomplishments of 2022 and any work items for 2023. Ms. 
Courtney Brunell will provide a list of talking points for the meeting. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: None. No public in attendance on line. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: None 
 
REPORTS BY HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICER OR STAFF 
Nisqually Tribe Outreach 
Staff will continue to reach out to the Nisqually Tribe in order to update the 
Lakewood Touring Map and website. Ms. Beth Campbell suggested asking the tribe 
for permission to to link their video where someone is speaking about the Nisqually 
culture in the native tongue and English onto the City website. 
 

3 of 55



City of Lakewood                                          Landmarks & Heritage Advisory Board   
  09/22/2022 Meeting  
 

2 

Clover Park School District Outreach                                                                
One idea discussed at the initial meeting was to have older students complete 
research projects to incorporate Chinese and Nisqually Tribe cultural heritage into 
the historical touring map. This would help students fulfill a graduation requirement 
of community service hours performed. Staff has a second meeting scheduled with 
CPSD on September 29, 2022 and will update LHAB members at the October 2022 
meeting. 
 
Lakewood Touring Map Update 
There has been no update to the Lakewood Touring Map as staff continue to reach 
out to the Nisqually Tribe and Clover Park School District. 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
Additional Community Designation Discussion  
Mr. Glen Spieth announced the Lakewood Historical Society will be placing two 
additional markers for Woodbrook Hunt Club and Byrd Cemetery on Phillips Rd. The 
Lakewood Mayor is scheduled attend the dedication celebration in November for the 
Woodbrook Hunt Club. 
 
Mr. Spieth explained the Lakewood Historical Society has plans to place markers in 
2023 for the Lakeview Train Station and the Chinese Expulsion, and the Lakeview 
Post Office. 
 
Ms. Christina Manetti queried marking the Motor Avenue motor trolley routes used 
throughout the City. 
 
Members discussed making contact with property owners at House of Donuts, 
Colonial Center, Bowlero Lanes, and Denny’s Restaurant on Bridgeport Way to 
discuss community designations for the buildings.  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
2023 Work Plan Discussion  
Mr. Josh Kubitza reviewed each item of the 2023 work plan with members and 
discussed what they would like to speak with City Council members about during 
the upcoming joint meeting on Monday, September 26, 2022. 
 
Councilmember Paul Bocchi suggested the members apply for the Pierce County 
grant rounds that were just advertised. 
 
Next Regular Meeting would be held Thursday, October 27, 2022 at 6:00 p.m. 
Meeting Adjourned at 6:52 p.m. 
 
________________________________   
02/09/2023 

 
 
_________________________________  
02/09/2023 

Glen Spieth, Chair 
Landmarks & Heritage Advisory Board 

Karen Devereaux, Recording Secretary 
Landmarks & Heritage Advisory Board 

 

4 of 55



 

City of Lakewood  1                                       Landmarks & Heritage Advisory Board 
10/27//2022 Meeting    

 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 

        

 
 

LANDMARKS AND HERITAGE ADVISORY BOARD  

Thursday, October 27, 2022 Meeting Minutes  

ZOOM Meeting 

6000 Main Street SW 

Lakewood, WA  98499 

 

“The mission of the City of Lakewood  

Landmarks and Heritage Advisory Board is to  

preserve, protect, and promote the unique heritage and historic 

resources of the City of Lakewood” 

CALL TO ORDER                                                                                                                                                                                                        
Mr. Glen Spieth, Chair called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM.  
 
MEETING PROTOCOL                                                                                                                                                               
Roll Call                                                                                                                                                           
Landmarks & Heritage Advisory Board Members Present:  Glen Spieth, Chair;  
and Christina Manetti, Vice Chair 
Landmarks & Heritage Advisory Board Members Excused:  
Landmarks & Heritage Advisory Board Members Absent:   
Staff Present: Josh Kubitza, Associate Planner; Karen Devereaux, Administrative 
Assistant  
Council Liaison to LHAB:  Councilmember Paul Bocchi (not present) 
 
Acceptance/Changes to Agenda: None 
 
Approval of Minutes 
The minutes of the meeting held on September 22, 2022 were approved as 
written by voice vote, M/S/C Campbell/Manetti.  Motion to approve the 
minutes passed unanimously, 3-0.  
 
Quorum was not reached for the October 27 meeting therefore these minutes were 
not voted on.  
 
Announcements: Mr. Josh Kubitza introduced Ms. Anaya Davis, Youth 
Councilmember assigned to attend and participate in LHAB meetings. Ms. Davis 
explained there are four youth councilmembers assigned and at least one of them 
would attend each meeting throughout the school year. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: None. No public in attendance or online. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: None 
 
REPORTS BY HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICER OR STAFF 
Nisqually Tribe Outreach 
Staff has not been able to connect with anyone form the Nisqually Tribe but will 
continue to reach out in order to update the Lakewood Touring Map and website.  

5 of 55



City of Lakewood                                          Landmarks & Heritage Advisory Board   
  10/27/2022 Meeting  
 

2 

Clover Park School District Outreach                                                                 
The meetings with the Clover Park School District have been delayed. Staff will 
continue to reach out to them and update LHAB members when progress is made. 
 
Lakewood Touring Map Update 
There has been no update to the Lakewood Touring Map as staff continue to reach 
out to the Nisqually Tribe and Clover Park School District. Mr. Glen Speith, Chair 
suggested a date should be set to have a final viewing of the draft and send to print 
before spring 2023. 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
Review of Joint Council Meeting on September 26, 2022 
Mr. Kubitza reviewed with members the comments received from Council members 
such as the updated tree preservation code includes an update that will allow LHAB 
to designate heritage trees; Potential designation of the Lake Steilacoom Dam was 
discussed and suggested to be added to the 2023 Work Plan; Bridgeport Way SW 
street signage has both a green required sign and a brown historical sign which 
caused some confusion and required clarification; and the Mayor recommended the 
board look at partnering with the Grave Concerns Association in research and 
design of a video tour of the Western State Hospital cemeteries. 
 
Update Draft Work Plan  
Members were asked to review the list and add any other projects they have 
interest in. Mr. Spieth, Chair mentioned that he has written a marker for the Chines 
Expulsion at the Lakeview Train Station which was located across the street from 
the Lakeview Post Office and he is very close to getting approval for a community 
designation on the Lakewood Theater; these designations could be added to the 
2023 Work Plan.  
 
Mr. Kubitza encouraged members to contact him individually prior to the January 
Council meeting if additional ideas to add came to mind. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
November and December Changes to Meeting Dates  
The November and December meetings have been tentatively cancelled. Staff will 
request a meeting if something important comes up during the next couple of 
months to see if interest/need in meeting is made. 
 
Next Regular Meeting would be held Thursday, January 26, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. 
Meeting Adjourned at 6:35 p.m. 
 
 
________________________________   
02/09/2023 

 
 
 
_________________________________  
02/09/2023 

Glen Spieth, Chair 
Landmarks & Heritage Advisory Board 

Karen Devereaux, Recording Secretary 
Landmarks & Heritage Advisory Board 

 

6 of 55



 
 

TO: Landmarks and Heritage Advisory Board 

 
FROM: Josh Kubitza, Associate Planner  

 

DATE: January 17, 2023 

 

SUBJECT: Carriage House Type II Certificate of Appropriateness Staff Report 

 

 

Introduction: 

 

On December 14, 2022, the City received a request for a Type II Certificate of 

Appropriateness from Gerald Eysaman on behalf of Susan Warner, Executive 
Director of Lakewold Gardens. The purpose of the project is to restore and protect 

the main floor of the Carriage House and reconstruct the upper level of the Carriage 

House to its 1925 condition. The project includes additions to the Carriage House 

and construction of the “Goat House”, which are restrooms associated with the 

Carriage House that will replace the existing porta-potties on the property. The 
proposed work on the buildings is subject to review by the Landmarks and Heritage 

Advisory Board (LHAB) for the issuance of a Certificate of Appropriateness to assure 

that the proposed rehabilitation work complies with the Secretary of the Interior’s 

Standards for Rehabilitation of Historic Properties.  

 
Landmark Listing: 

 

Lakewold Gardens was nominated as a City of Lakewood Landmark by the Friends 

of Lakewold and designated as such by LHAB in 2002. The property is also listed in 

the National Register of Historic Places and the Washington Heritage Register.  
 

The Lakewold Gardens Landmark nomination application called the Carriage House 

the “old stables” and was described as being used for storage and as a garden 

shop. There are no specific details on the Carriage House historic features in the 

nomination application. The National Register of Historic Places Registration Form 

lists that Carriage House as a historic building and included the following 
description:  

 

“Carriage House: The Alexanders built an L-shaped carriage house in 1918. 

 It served as a car garage, a horse stable and a garden equipment storage 

area. Although the building has been re-purposed to serve as the Lakewold 
Garden Shop and the Horticulture storage area, the wood-sided exterior 

remains as it was when built. It also retains its original sliding carriage doors 

and original wood windows. The building has a gable roof, covered in asphalt 

shingles and is clad with 8” wide clapboard siding.” 

7 of 55



 

Per historic photographs, the upper level to the Carriage House was in place in the 
1920’s. Based on information from the applicant, this upper level was a caretaker 

or mechanic apartment that was removed in the 1980’s.  

 

The National Register of Historic Places Registration Form identifies the historic 

landscape elements of the property that are also described the Lakewold Gardens 
Landmark nomination form. Based on the Lakewold Gardens Site Map – Landscape 

Elements (see Attachment 8), there are no historic landscape features near the 

Carriage House. Per the Lakewold Gardens Site Map – Champion Trees (See 

Attachment 8), it is possible that a Champion Tree that may be near the proposed 

“Goat House”, but it isn’t clear if this Champion Tree is still standing.  

 
Neither the Lakewold Gardens Landmark nomination documents nor the National 

Register documents reference a “Goat House.” The phrase “Goat House” is being 

generally used by the applicant to name the comfort building because they believe 

there was a goat house in the area but there is no photographic evidence.   

 
Project Description: 

 

The main purpose of the project is to rehabilitate the Carriage House as faithfully as 

possible to its 1925 condition, while also gaining additional office use and program 

use out of the historic structure. Select Carriage House design sheets are provided 
in Attachment 3. Select Goat House design sheets are provided in Attachment 4. 

The following is a summary of the proposed work: 

 

• Reconstructing an 804 square foot upper floor addition with sizing, siding, 

trim, windows, architectural features, and materials that match the historical 

photographs from 1925; 
• Replace the 4:12 slope roof with a 12:12 slope roof with historically accurate 

cedar shingles; 

• Add historically appropriate wood storm windows to all windows to ensure 

compliance building energy efficiency requirements; 

• Restore or replace exterior 8” clapboard siding, as needed; 
• Restore sliding carriage doors; 

• Reconstruct collapsing exterior wall with in-kind materials; 

• Construct a 261 square foot main floor addition for office space, small 

kitchen, and office restroom. This addition will include a small shed roof 

vestibule off the south elevation to provide secondary stair and egress to the 
upper level; 

• Reconstruct horse stalls that will be utilized as temporary office spaces; 

• Interior historical features (beadboard, horse trough, exposed artifacts) will 

be restored or left in place, except if replacement is required because they 

are severely damaged or contaminated with lead paint. Removed features 
will be replaced with in-kind material that match the existing conditions;  

• Construct the 281 square foot “Goat House” which is a comfort structure that 

will replace the existing porta-potties used throughout the historical site. This 

is a new construction associated with the Carriage House rehabilitation. The  

8 of 55



• Various landscape/plaza improvements adjacent to the Carriage House to 

improve ADA compliance, site functionality, and enhance the historical 
features of the building.  

• Improve the historical marker location with a fully accessible path.  

 

Certificate of Appropriateness Criteria: 

 
Per LMC 2.48.070, a Certificate of Appropriateness must be obtained from the 

Board before any alteration may be made to the significant features of the 

Landmark. Per the LHAB By-Laws updated in April 23, 2015, LHAB has adopted the 

“Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Treatment of Historic Properties” for use 

in reviewing and making decisions on Certificate of Appropriateness application. 

 
Analysis: 

 

The following are sections of the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for 

Rehabilitation that pertain to this application. 

 
1. A property shall be used for its historic purpose or be placed in a new use 

that requires minimal change to the defining characteristics of the building 

and its site and environment. 

 

2. The historic character of a property shall be retained and preserved. The 
removal of historic materials or alteration of features and spaces that 

characterize a property shall be avoided. 

 

Staff Response: The historical use of the property as a single-family 

dwelling and landscape garden is unchanged. The Carriage House existing 

gift shop and admissions area will remain. The remaining areas will become 
additional staff offices and activity areas which allows Lakewold Gardens to 

preserve the defining characteristics of the building with minimal changes. 

The removal or alteration of historic materials is due to either severe 

damage, lead paint contamination, or replacement for building code 

compliance. All new or replaced materials are being matched to the existing 
building materials and/or verified by historic photographs.  

 

3. Each property shall be recognized as a physical record of its time, place, 

and use. Changes that create a false sense of historical development, such 

as adding conjectural features or architectural elements from other 
buildings, shall not be undertaken. 

 

4. Most properties change over time; those changes that have acquired 

historic significance in their own right shall be retained and preserved. 

 
Staff Response: As stated above, the historical use of the property is 

unchanged. The Carriage House has acquired historic significance between 

the City of Lakewood landmark Designation and the National Register of 

Historic Places Registration. The original carriage doors, 8” wide clapboard 

9 of 55



siding, and wood windows are being restored or replaced with in-kind 

materials. The upper level additional and associated gable roof and cedar 
shingles rehabilitates the structure to its original 1925 condition. The 

project is retaining and preserving the historic features of the Carriage 

House. 

 

The associated “Goat House” will be a complimentary building that replaces 
the existing porta-potties through-out the site. There are no false sense of 

historical development or architectural elements from other buildings as 

part of this project.  

 

5. Distinctive features, finishes, and construction techniques or examples of 

craftsmanship that characterize a historic property shall be preserved. 
 

Staff Response: As stated above, all distinct features of the Carriage House 

will be left exposed, rehabilitated, or replaced with in-kind materials. The 

project is utilizing historic photographs and existing building structure to 

identify the feature, finishes, and craftmanship of the building. The “Goat 
House” will be complimentary building to the historic features on site.  

 

6. Deteriorated historic features shall be repaired rather than replaced. Where 

the severity of deterioration requires replacement of a distinctive feature, 

the new feature shall match the old in design, color, texture, and other 
visual qualities and, where possible, materials. Replacement of missing 

features shall be substantiated by documentary, physical, or pictorial 

evidence. 

 

Staff Response: Deteriorated materials and architectural features will be 

restored where possible and replaced with in-kind materials if restoration is 
not an option. The main reason for replacement will be due to significant 

lead contamination from paint making it unsafe to restore the material. The 

replacement materials match the old design, color, texture, and visual 

qualities that are identifiable from the existing features or from historical 

photographs of the Carriage House.  
 

7. Chemical or physical treatments, such as sandblasting, that cause damage 

to historic materials shall not be used. The surface cleaning of structures, if 

appropriate, shall be undertaken using the gentlest means possible. 

 
Staff Response: The proposal does not include chemical or physical 

treatments that will cause damage to historical materials. Due to significant 

lead contamination in the paint, these practices are not possible. 

 

8. Significant archeological resources affected by a project shall be protected 
and preserved. If such resources must be disturbed, mitigation measures 

shall be undertaken. 

 

10 of 55



Staff Response: There are no known significant archeological resources that 

will be affected by the project. To further protect and preserve 
archeological resources on the property, an Inadvertent Discovery Plan is 

recommended to be kept on site during all ground disturbing activities.  

 

9. New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction shall not 

destroy historic materials that characterize the property. The new work 
shall be differentiated from the old and shall be compatible with the 

massing, size, scale, and architectural features to protect the historic 

integrity of the property and its environment. 

 

10. New additions and adjacent or related new construction shall be undertaken 

in such a manner that if removed in the future, the essential form and 
integrity of the historic property and its environment would be unimpaired. 

 

Staff Response: Per the National Register of Historic Places Registration 

Form, the main architectural features of the Carriage house are its 8” wide 

clapboard siding, gable roof, original sliding carriage doors, and original 
wood windows. The proposed additions (main floor and upper floor) will not 

destroy these historic features. As stated before the 8” wide clapboard 

siding will be restored unless due to wood deterioration and lead 

contamination the siding will need to be replaced. All replaced historic 

features will be replaced with in-kind materials. The roof slope is being 
reverted from its current 4:12 slope roof to the historic 12:12 slope roof 

with cedar shingles. The original wood windows will remain on the main 

floor and the upper level windows will be reconstructed to match the 

historic windows in photographs. Historically appropriate wood storm 

windows are being added to the wood windows to improve the energy 

performance of the building. These storm windows could be removed 
without compromising the property.  

 

The proposed “Goat House” is a new construction associated with the 

Carriage House and will replace the existing porta-potties on site. The 

proposed building is separated from the Carriage House by distinct 
hardscape and landscaping and is generally compatible with the massing, 

size, scale, and architectural features of the property.  

 

Recommendation: 

 
Staff recommends approval of the Type II Certificate of Appropriateness subject to 

the following conditions: 

  

1. No Champion Trees shall be removed for the proposed Goat House. No tree 

shall be removed without a Tree Removal Permit reviewed and approved by 
City of Lakewood Development Services.  

 

2. An Inadvertent Discovery Plan shall be kept on site during all ground 

disturbing activities.  

11 of 55



 

Attachments: 
1. Application for Certificate of Appropriateness received December 14, 2022 

2. Applicants Narrative received December 14, 2022  

3. Carriage House Plans – Select Pages  

4. Goat House Plan – Select Pages 

5. Original Lakewold Designation Nomination Application dated October 16, 
2022 

6. Unsigned Copy of the November 21, 2002, LHAB Public Hearing Meeting 

Minutes 

7. Lakewold National Register of Historic Places Registration Form, Pages 3-8, 

dated October 2014. 

8. National Register Nomination Site Maps dated October 2014 
9. Public Notice published in the Tacoma News Tribune January 13, 2023 

12 of 55



13 of 55

bstewart
Received - first

bstewart
Text Box
2414/4887

jkubitza
Text Box
Attachment 1. 



14 of 55

bstewart
Received - first

bstewart
Text Box
2414/4887



I:\Templates\LAND USE - APPLICATIONS\Certificate of Appropriateness.doc—revised 12/02/2022

Additions or Modifications to Landmarked Buildings
In addition to drawing and photographs, please identify the following:

Describe what modifications are being made to the landmark building.

Do these modifications meet the requirements of the Secretary of the Interior's Standards for 
Rehabilitation?  (see attached.)  Explain how the project follows these guidelines.

If the project does not follow the Secretary of the Interior's Standards for Rehabilitation, explain 
why you are unable to do so.

 The existing Carriage House building (C.1910 & C.1920) had it’s Upper Level and a portion of it’s Main Level 
removed sometime in the 1980’s.  The work of this project is to reconstruct the Upper Level and Main Floor as faithfully as 
possible to its circa 1925 condition.  Existing fi nishes outside and inside are to be retained and restored.  Existing windows 
and doors (including the large sliding garage doors) will be restored.  The majority of the Upper Level windows will be 
reconstructed to match the historic windows visible in historic photographs.   Upper Level roofs, dormers, details, siding, and 
trim will to the greatest extent possible replicate the historic elements.   In an attempt to improve the thermal envelope of the 
building period appropriate wood storm windows will be added to all windows.
 Due to the lack of good photographic evidence, portions of the Upper Level opposite the main ‘front’ plaza are based 
on a number of remnant existing details suggestive of the confi guration and fenestration of that side of the building.  A small 
shed roof vestibule was added to the south elevation to provide a secondary stair and egress to the Upper Level.
 The uses of the building will remain contemporary.  The existing Gift Shop and Admissions area will remain as such.  
The former horticultural offi ce and storage areas will become offi ces and workshops for public programs.  The Upper Level, 
originally a caretaker’s or mechanic’s apartment, will become additional staff offi ces.

 The Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation are intended as the baseline for work on this project.  
Existing exterior and the bulk of interior fi nishes will remain.  The exterior, originally painted, will seek to match the earliest 
color for the project. The interior now painted, likely unpainted originally, will maintain the beadboard fi nish and be repainted.  
Original extant fenestration is to be fully restored.  The absent Upper Level,  including roofs and dormers, knee brackets, 
fenestration and trim is to be rebuilt to match historic documentation.  Deteriorated materials are to be restored where possible 
or replaced with in-kind materials.   Wood gutters, evident in historical photographs will be returned.

 Some suppositions, based on a variety of extant details and ‘ghosting’ of historical features, have been made to 
reconstruct a portion of the structure where hard documentary evidence is not available.  

 New historically appropriate wood storm window will be added to improve the building’s energy performance which 
otherwise might have require Upper Level windows to not match details typical of extant windows and visible in historical 
photographs.  These can be removed without compromising the form or integrity of the property.

 The interior beadboard, originally unpainted, will not have the paint removed due to cost, risk of remediation, and 
potential damage to the wood.

15 of 55

bstewart
Received - first

bstewart
Text Box
2414/4887

jkubitza
Text Box
Attachment 2. 



T h ET h E

 C a r r i a g e  H o u s e  C a r r i a g e  H o u s e 

@@

L a k e w o l d  G a r d e n sL a k e w o l d  G a r d e n s

L a k e w o o d ,   W a s h i n g t o nL a k e w o o d ,   W a s h i n g t o n  

S
he

e
t 

 
A

.1

architecture

EYSAMAN& Company
713 Saint Helen’s Avenue, offi ce 111     Tacoma, Washington    98402
(253) AR2-5934          GeraldE@EYSAMANCompany.com

structural engineering

JP JONES ENGINEERING
Structural Design
711 Saint Helen’s Avenue, Suite 208     Tacoma, Washington    98402

civil engineering

Beyler Consulting, LLC
5920 100th Street, Suite #25     Lakewood, Washington     98499

mechanical, electrical, and plumbing

HultzBHU engineers inc
1111 Fawcett  Avenue, Suite 100     Tacoma, Washington     98402

specifi cations

JKB Architectural Specifi cations  LLC
90 West Main Avenue, Suite 8     Morgan Hill, California     95037

2
0

 C
a

rH
2

0
 C

a
rH

owner

Friends of Lakewold Garden
12317 Gravelly Lake Drive SW / Lakewood, Washington    98499

ISSUE

PERMIT ISSUE I               7 SEPTEMBER 2022
PERMIT ISSUE II             19 OCTOBER 2022
PERMIT ISSUE III             05 DECEMBER 2022

Terms of Use
Use of these documents by any party acknowledges 
and accepts that they were prepared and coordinated 
in a manner consistent with the degree of care and skill 
ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession 
currently practicing under similar circumstances.  No 
Design Professional whose work is contained herein certifi es, 
guarantees, or warrants the complete accuracy and 
coordination of all the information provided.  It is therefore 
incumbent on every user of these documents to carefully and 
completely review said documents, in full, and immediately 
report in writing any discrepancies, inconsistencies, or 
errors found herein to the Design Professional(s) .  Liability 
of any and all design Professionals  whose work is part of 
these documents is limited to damages and losses arising 
from their negligent acts, errors or omissions only in the 
performance of professional services for this project.  Use 
of these documents, by any party, accepts that no Design 
Professional, whose work is contained herein, does in any 
way indemnify,  or agree to defend, pay, or save harmless 
the negligence, errors, or actions of any other individual 
using these documents.

If you do not agree to the above Terms of Use;  any use, 
copying, disclosure, or distribution or the taking of any action 
in reliance upon these documents in whole or part is strictly 
prohibited.

○ Carriage House

○ ○ Goat HouseGoat House

16 of 55

bstewart
Received - first

bstewart
Text Box
2414/4887

jkubitza
Text Box
Attachment 3. 



T
h

E
T

h
E

 C
a

r
r

i
a

g
e

 H
o

u
s

e
 C

a
r

r
i

a
g

e
 H

o
u

s
e

  
@@

L
a

k
e

w
o

l
d

 
G

a
r

d
e

n
s

 
L

a
k

e
w

o
l

d
 
G

a
r

d
e

n
s

 

      project      project

Northorth

11  Conceptural Site Plan LayoutConceptural Site Plan Layout
  ++1” = 10’ - 0”1” = 10’ - 0”

tr
ue
 n

o
rt
h

tr
ue
 n

o
rt
h

SHEET

AC.1

  C
O

N
TE

N
T

 S
ITE

 P
LA

N
 L

A
YO

UT
 

IS
SU

E
PE

RM
IT 

IS
SU

E 
III

  
 

 
 

05
 D

EC
EM

BE
R 

20
22

South Wing

North Wing
the Plaza

Extg Entry Path

Extg Entry Path

Green GardenGreen Garden
WallWall

Rain 
Garden
SEE 2/AC.1

UPPERUPPER
OFFICE WALKWAYOFFICE WALKWAY

Plant Plant 
CartsCarts

Quatrafoil

nodenode

Admissions                      Garden ShopAdmissions                      Garden Shop

WorkshopWorkshop

Offi cesOffi ces

Visitor Parking

Planting 
Yard

North Staff 
Parking

East Staff 
Parking

G
oa

t 
H

ou
se

12’

8’

7’

18’18’

S
he

e
t 

 
A

5

’888888888’88’

7’7’

Trash Trash 
PadPad

12’’12’
EXTGEXTG

EXTGEXTG

EXTGEXTG

EXTGEXTG

EXTGEXTG

EXTGEXTGEXTGEXTG

EXTGEXTG

EXTGEXTG

EXTGEXTG
EXTGEXTG

EXTGEXTG

EXTGEXTG

EXTGEXTG

EXTGEXTG EXTGEXTG

EXTGEXTG

EXTGEXTG

EXTGEXTG

EXTGEXTG
EXTGEXTG

EXTGEXTG

EXTGEXTG
EXTGEXTG

EXTGEXTG

EXTGEXTG

EXTGEXTG

2” CALP EVERGREEN TREE2” CALP EVERGREEN TREE

2” CALP EVERGREEN TREE2” CALP EVERGREEN TREE

20 GAL EVERGREEN  SHRUB20 GAL EVERGREEN  SHRUB

20 GAL EVERGREEN  SHRUB20 GAL EVERGREEN  SHRUB

20 GAL EVERGREEN  SHRUB20 GAL EVERGREEN  SHRUB

20 GAL EVERGREEN  SHRUB20 GAL EVERGREEN  SHRUB

20 GAL DECIDUOUS  SHRUB

20 GAL DECIDUOUS  SHRUBCCIDDDUOUODUO

SWALE

PLANTING TERRACE PLANTING TERRACE 
WALKWAYWALKWAY

Planting Planting 
TerraceTerrace

Westside pathWestside path

20 GAL EVERGREEN  SHRUB20 GAL EVERGREEN  SHRUB

20 GAL EVERGREEN  SHRUB20 GAL EVERGREEN  SHRUB

20 GAL EVERGREEN  20 GAL EVERGREEN  
SHRUBSHRUB

20 GAL 20 GAL 
EVERGREEN  EVERGREEN  
SHRUBSHRUB

LIM
IT 

O
F 

W
O

RK
 A

RE
A

LIMIT OF WORK AREA

LIMIT OF WORK AREA

LIMIT OF WORK AREA

LIMIT OF WORK AREA

LIM
IT O

F W
ORK AREA

LIM
IT O

F W
ORK AREA

20 GAL EVERGREEN  SHRUB20 GAL EVERGREEN  SHRUB

LIM
IT O

F W
ORK AREA

LIM
IT O

F W
ORK AREA

walkwaywalkway

Site Address
12317 Gravelly Lake Drive SW
Lakewood, Washington     98499

Parcel Number(s)
4725002372      3,921SF 0.09Acres
4725002371   149,846 SF  3.44 ACRES

11’ - 0”     
        10’- 0”                  9’-0”

11’ - 0”     
        10’- 0”                  9’-0”

18’ - 0” 18’ - 0” 

ACCESSIBLE PARKING SPACE ACCESSIBLE PARKING SPACE 
STENCIL SEE 6/A0.1STENCIL SEE 6/A0.1

VAN SIGN SEE 7A/A0.1VAN SIGN SEE 7A/A0.1

CAR SIGN SEE 7B/A0.1CAR SIGN SEE 7B/A0.1

Access Aisle / Entry
Access Aisle / Entry

RESTRIP EXISTING 
PARKING FOR 
ACCESSIBLE 
PARKING AT 
ENTRY PATH WITH 
FLORAL PATTERN 
BY OWNER

22  Rain Garden SectionRain Garden Section
ntsnts

33  Feature Boulders Reference ImageFeature Boulders Reference Image
ntsnts

44  Fence Reference ImageFence Reference Image
ntsnts

MATCH FENCE SETIONS WITH EXTG HISTORIC PERIMETER 
FENCE.  INTERMEDIATE ‘POSTS’ NOM 6X6 POWDER 
COATED TUBE STEEL #+@ 8’-0 “ OC.

FEATURE BOULDER FEATURE BOULDER 
RETAINING WALL RETAINING WALL 
SEE 3/AC.1SEE 3/AC.1

LOW PATH RETAINING LOW PATH RETAINING 
WALL, SEE A-AC3.0WALL, SEE A-AC3.0

   GRAVEL PATH   GRAVEL PATH

ADJUST EDGES MIN 

ADJUST EDGES MIN 

PATH WIDTH 5’ - 0”

PATH WIDTH 5’ - 0”

EX
TG

 P
A

TH
N

EW
 C

O
N

C
 P

A
TH

EXTG PAVING

NEW CONC PLAZA

STRIP DRAIN SEE C3.0

STRIP DRAIN SEE C3.0

EDGE OF EXTG PAVINGEDGE OF EXTG PAVING

EDGE OF NEW PAVINGEDGE OF NEW PAVING

EDGE OF EXTG EDGE OF EXTG 
PAVINGPAVING

EDGE OF NEW EDGE OF NEW 
PAVINGPAVING

REMOVE EXTG PERIMETER REMOVE EXTG PERIMETER 
FENCE.  NEW PERIMETER FENCE, FENCE.  NEW PERIMETER FENCE, 
SEE 4/AC.1SEE 4/AC.1

MIN 5’ PLANTING SETBACK TO MIN 5’ PLANTING SETBACK TO 
EDGE OF PAVINGEDGE OF PAVING

EDGE OF EXTG EDGE OF EXTG 
PAVINGPAVING

EDGE OF NEW EDGE OF NEW 
PAVINGPAVING

SOLIL AMENDMENT & PLANT MARTERIAL 
BY OWNER

2’x2’x2” CONC 
PAVERS IN MIN 
4” SAND BED, 
SLOPE TO DRAIN

EXTG ELEC 
SERVICE PANELS

4’X8’X4” THK 
REINF CONC 
PAD

GENERAL NOTES

1. PLAN SHOWN FOR GENERAL CONCEPT.  
COORDINATE WITH AC.2 & CIVIL DOCUMENTS, 
SEE C1.3

2. SLOPE ALL GRADES AWAY FRIOK 
STRUCTURES,  SWALE TO DRAINAGE DEVICES OR 
CATCHMENT AREAS.

17 of 55

bstewart
Received - first

bstewart
Text Box
2414/4887



T
h

E
T

h
E

 C
a

r
r

i
a

g
e

 H
o

u
s

e
 C

a
r

r
i

a
g

e
 H

o
u

s
e

  
@@

L
a

k
e

w
o

l
d

 
G

a
r

d
e

n
s

 
L

a
k

e
w

o
l

d
 
G

a
r

d
e

n
s

 

1 Main Floor Plan
 

SHEET

Ax.1

  C
O

N
TE

N
T

EX
HI

ST
IN

G
 IM

A
G

ES
 

IS
SU

E
PE

RM
IT 

IS
SU

E 
III

  
 

 
 

05
 D

EC
EM

BE
R 

20
22

GARDEN SHOP

ADMISSIONSVESTIBULE

HALL MKITCH

STALL I          STALL II          STALL III

MAIN WC

THE PLAZA

D0
3b

North Wing

So
ut

h 
W

in
g

D0
3b

D0
3b

SSSSSSo
uuuuutttttttt

hhhhhhh 
WWWWWWW

in
g

8 SOME BIT OF PLUMBING, IF NON OPERATIONAL RESTORED AS 
ARTIFACTS

1 THE HISTORIC SANITARY TAND WATER SUPPLEY TO THE DEMOLISHED UPPER FLOOR   SANITARY DETERMINED TO BE NON-FUNCTIONAL;  RESTORE AS 
HISTORIC ARTIFACT.   IF WATER SUPPLY SERVICABLE, PATCH & REPAIR FOR NEW USE, IF NOT;  RESTORE AS HISTORIC ARTIFACT.

11 RESTORE CABINET

MAINTAIN EXTG OUTLETS 
FUNCTIONAL UPGRADE TO 
CODE, GFI W/ WP COVERS, TYP 
UNO.

TYYYYYYYPPPPPPP P 

6  MISC PIPES,  IF NON OPERATIONAL RESTORE AS ARTIFACT, TYP UNO

S
he

e
t 

 
A

.7

16 REPAIR SURFACE OUTLETS - REMAIN EXPOSED, TYP15 NORTH WING ATTIC ACCESS -SECURE IN PLACE NON-FUNCTIONAL

4 RESTORE STAIRS & INCORPORATE INTO WORK 5 RESTORE STAIRS & INCORPORATE INTO WORK

17 NORTH WING  NICHE-SECURE IN PLACE NON-FUNCTIONAL

2 EXTG HOSE BIB VERIFY FUNCTIONAL - 
REMAIN EXPOSED

3 REMNANT ELECTRICAL RESTORE AS ARTIFACT, TYP UNO

GARDEN SHOP

NT ELECTRICAL RESTORE AS ARRRRRTRTTTTIFIFFFFAAAAACA T, TYP UNNT ELECTRICAL R

9 RESTORE SLIDING DOOR FLOOR GUIDES, 
AS PRACTICAL, TYP

S

14 EXPOSED CONDUIT VERIFY FUNCTIONALITY - REMAIN EXPOSED, TYP

GENERAL NOTES
1. THE IMAGES INCLUDED ON THIS SHEETS ILLUSTRATE NUMEROUS FEATURES 
AND ELEMENTS THAT CONTRUBUTE TO THE HISTORICAL CHARACTER OF THE 
STRUCTURE.  
2. TO THE GREATEST EXTENT PRACTICAL THEY ARE TO REMAIN VISIBLE AND 
EXPOSED.    
3. FIELD VERIFY MECHANICAL, ELECTRIAL, & PLUMBING ELEMENTS ARE 
FUNCTIONAL & CODE COMPLIANT.  RETURN FUNCTIONALITY WHERE PRACTICAL & 
APPROPRIATE, UNO

THE PLAZA

thhhhhh WWWWiiiithhhh WWWWWWWWWiiiiinnnnnnnggggggggg

T PT P

N tNort

ADMISSIONSULE

HALL MMKMKMKMKITCH

MAIN WC

8 SOME 
ARTIFACTS

4 RESTORE STAIRS & INCORPORATE INTO WORKO

GENERAL NOTES
1. THE IMAGES INCLUDED ON 
AND ELEMENTS THAT CONTRUBUTE 
STRUCTURE.  
2. TO THE GREATEST EXTENT PR
EXPOSED.    
3. FIELD VERIFY MECHANICAL,
FUNCTIONAL & CODE COMPLIANT
APPROPRIATE, UNO

MAINTAIN EXTG OUTLETS 
FUNCTIONAL UPGRADE TO

12 NORTH WING NICHE -SECURE IN PLACE NON-FUNCTIONAL
nnnn FFFFFFFFFllllllllooooor Plannnnn FFFFFFFFFllllllllooor PlanMaaaaaaiiiiiiiinnnnnnn FFFMMaaaaaaaiiiiiiiinnnnnnnn FFFF

10 RETAIN EXTANT PORTION OF HISTORIC 
KNEE BRACKETS IN SITU.  RECONSTRUCT EXTANT  
BRACKETS & FABRICATE NEW BRACKETS BASED 
ON EXTANT, VISIBLE IN MULTIPLE LOCATION, TYP

7  HISTORIC LOCKING BOLT AND WOOD HOLDER.  VERIFY ALLOWS 
DOOR IN NEW CONFIGURATION TO BE OPERATIONAL

13 RESTORE EXTG WOOD CUBBIES, P&P

11 RESTORE CABINET

M

10 RETAIN EXTANT PORTION OF HISTORICC 
KNEE BRACKETS IN SITU.  RECONSTRUCT EXTANNT  
BRACKETS & FABRICATE NEW BRACKETS BASEDD 
ON EXTANT, VISIBLE IN MULTIPLE LOCATION, TYYP

E IN PLACE NON FUNCTIOIOOOONNNNHE SECUR

ACTIVITIES SPACEACTIVITIES SPACE HORT ROOMHORT ROOM PLANTING TERRACEPLANTING TERRACE

OFF VESTIBULEOFF VESTIBULE

18 of 55

bstewart
Received - first

bstewart
Text Box
2414/4887



T
h

E
T

h
E

 C
a

r
r

i
a

g
e

 H
o

u
s

e
 C

a
r

r
i

a
g

e
 H

o
u

s
e

  
@@

L
a

k
e

w
o

l
d

 
G

a
r

d
e

n
s

 
L

a
k

e
w

o
l

d
 
G

a
r

d
e

n
s

 

SHEET

Ad.1

  C
O

N
TE

N
T

 M
A

IN
 F

LO
O

R 
D

EM
O

LI
TIO

N
 P

LA
N

IS
SU

E
PE

RM
IT 

IS
SU

E 
III

  
 

 
 

05
 D

EC
EM

BE
R 

20
22

S
he

e
t 

 
A

8

COMPLETELY 
REMOVE ENTRY 
VESTIBULE

COMPLETELY REMOVE COMPLETELY REMOVE 
ADMISSIONS CNTRS, ADMISSIONS CNTRS, 
PARTITION, & DRPARTITION, & DR

COMPLETELY REMOVE COMPLETELY REMOVE 
BACK PARTITION & DRBACK PARTITION & DR

CAREFULLY REOPEN CAREFULLY REOPEN 
EXTG DREXTG DR

EXTG HAY LOFT HATCH EXTG HAY LOFT HATCH 
ABOVEABOVE

EXTG SHALLOW EXTG SHALLOW 
TROUGHTROUGH

EXTG DELINIATION OF EXTG DELINIATION OF 
HIST STAL.  REFERENCE HIST STAL.  REFERENCE 
FOR NEW STALL FOR NEW STALL 
PARTITIONSPARTITIONS

EXTG ATTIC ACCESS EXTG ATTIC ACCESS 
HATCHHATCH

CRACK IN EXTG SLABCRACK IN EXTG SLAB

COMPLETELY REMOVE 
WD & PLSTIC LEAN-TO 
GREENHOUSE STRUCTURE & 
ALL ASSOCIATE SHELVING

COMPLETELY REMOVE 
EXTG CONC CURBS IN THIS 
AREA

COMPLETLELY REMOVE 
EXTEND OF NON-
ORIGINAL END WALL & 
ALL ASSOCIATED CONC 
FOUNDATIONS & CURBS

COMPLETELY REMOVE 
NON-ORIGINAL DR & 
FRAME.  NEW WNDW THIS 
HISTORIC LOCATION

COMPLETELY REMOVE 
CONC CURBS AND SLABS 
IN THIS AREA

COMPLETEY REMOVE NON-HISTORIC COMPLETEY REMOVE NON-HISTORIC 
SUPPORT POSTS & ASSOCIATED PIER PADSSUPPORT POSTS & ASSOCIATED PIER PADS

COMPLETELY PORTION OF WESTERN COMPLETELY PORTION OF WESTERN 
WALL OF NORTH WING & ASSOCIATED WALL OF NORTH WING & ASSOCIATED 
FOUNDATION FOUNDATION 

COMPLETELY REMOVE ALL TEMPORARY COMPLETELY REMOVE ALL TEMPORARY 
SUPPORT FRAMINGSUPPORT FRAMING

GENERAL NOTES

1. PRIOR TO ANY AND ALL DEMOLITION WORK INSURE FULL AND COMPLETE 
STUCUTURAL INTEGRITY OF STRUCTURE TO REMAIN.  PROVIDE FULL AND COMPLETE 
TEMPORARY SUPPORTS UNTIL ALL NEW STRUCTURAL ELEMENTS ARE FULLY IN PLACE

2. WHERE STRUCTURAL INTEGRITY IS IN QUESTION OR EXISTNG CONDITIONS DO 
NOT CONFORM TO THESE CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS CONTACT ARCHITECT 
AND STRUCTURAL ENGINEER FOR THIER RECOMMENDATIONS  PRIOR TO 
PROCEEDING WITH ANY DEMOLITION WORK IN THAT AREA.

3. TEST OR HAVE TESTED ANY AND ALL SURFACES/MATERIAL PRIOR TO 
ANY DEMOLITION WORK FOR HAZARDOUS MATERIAL.  CONFORM TO ALL 
REQUIREMENTS FOR DEMOLITION AND DISPOSAL OF ANY AND ALL HAZARDOUS 
MATERIALS.

4. CAREFULLY INSPECT ALL WINDOWS AND DOORS.  EVALUATE INTEGRITY 
AND OPERATIONAL FUNCTIONALITY.  REPAIR/RESTORE ALL DILETRRIOUS 
CONDITIONS IN FULL CONFIORMANCE TO THE SECRETARY OF THE INTERIOR’S 
STANDARDS AND GUIDLINES FOR HISTORIC WINDOWS AND DOORS.  MATCH 
MATERIALS, PROFILE DIMENSIONS, AND FINISHES TO ORIGINAL HISTORIC 
WINDOW/DOOR CIRCA 1925.  WHERE REQUIRED TO REMOVE ANY ELEMENT 
OF A HISTORIC WINDOW OR DOOR FOR WORK OFF SITE CAREFULLY REMOVE 
MININIMUM SURROUNDING HISTORIC FABRIC & FINISH.  REPAIR TO MATCH ANY 
AND ALL DAMAGE TO EXISTING FABRIC CAUSED BY NEW WORK.

5. CAREFULLY INSPECT ALL WINDOW AND DOOR HARDWARE.  EVALUATE 
INTEGRITY AND OPERATIONAL FUNCTIONALITY.  REPAIR/RESTORE ALL DILETRRIOUS 
CONDITIONS IN FULL CONFIORMANCE TO THE SECRETARY OF THE INTERIOR’S 
STANDARDS AND GUIDLINES FOR HISTORIC WINDOWS AND DOORS.  MATCH 
MATERIALS, PROFILE DIMENSIONS, AND FINISHES TO ORIGINAL HISTORIC 
WINDOW/DOOR CIRCA 1925.  WHERE REQUIRED TO REMOVE ANY ELEMENT 
OF A HISTORIC WINDOW OR DOOR FOR WORK OFF SITE CAREFULLY REMOVE 
MININIMUM SURROUNDING HISTORIC FABRIC & FINISH.  REPAIR TO MATCH 
ANY AND ALL DAMAGE TO EXISTING FABRIC CAUSED BY NEW WORK.  WHERE 
ORIGINAL HARDWARE IS NON-EXTANT FABRICATE NEW HARDWARE TO REPLICATE 
ORIGINAL UNLESS SPECIFIC ALTERNATE HARDWARE IS SPECIFIED.

11  Main Floor Demolition PlanMain Floor Demolition Plan
  1/8” = 1’ - 0”1/8” = 1’ - 0”

EXCAVATE SOIL IN THIS EXCAVATE SOIL IN THIS 
AREA TO A MIN OF 6” AREA TO A MIN OF 6” 
BELOW WOOD SIDING BELOW WOOD SIDING 
AT FACE OF STRUCTURE.  AT FACE OF STRUCTURE.  
FINISH GRADE TO  FINISH GRADE TO  
PROVIDE POSITIVE PROVIDE POSITIVE 
DRAINAGE AWAY FROM DRAINAGE AWAY FROM 
STRUCTURESTRUCTURE

COMPLETEY REMOVE NON-HISTORIC COMPLETEY REMOVE NON-HISTORIC 
SUPPORT POSTS & ASSOCIATED PIER PADSSUPPORT POSTS & ASSOCIATED PIER PADS

CAREFULLY SAW-CUT EXTG CONC, CAREFULLY SAW-CUT EXTG CONC, 
REMOVE CONC & SOIL FOR PLACEMENT REMOVE CONC & SOIL FOR PLACEMENT 
OF FOUNDATION TO MOMENT FRAMEOF FOUNDATION TO MOMENT FRAME

EXTG STAIRCASE 
TO REMAIN

UPUP

UPUP

19 of 55

bstewart
Received - first

bstewart
Text Box
2414/4887



T
h

E
T

h
E

 C
a

r
r

i
a

g
e

 H
o

u
s

e
 C

a
r

r
i

a
g

e
 H

o
u

s
e

  
@@

L
a

k
e

w
o

l
d

 
G

a
r

d
e

n
s

 
L

a
k

e
w

o
l

d
 
G

a
r

d
e

n
s

 

SHEET

Ad.3

  C
O

N
TE

N
T

EX
TE

RI
O

R 
D

EM
O

LI
TIO

N
 IM

A
G

ES
  

IS
SU

E
PE

RM
IT 

IS
SU

E 
III

  
 

 
 

05
 D

EC
EM

BE
R 

20
22

S
he

e
t 

 
A

.10

COMPLETELY REMOVE ROOF STRUCTURE

COMPLETELY REMOVE ALL EXTG SIGNAGE

COMPLETELY REMOVE EXTG INTERMEDIATE WD POST AND PIERS.  SHORE 
AND MAINTAIN COMPLETE STRUCTURAL INTEGRITY UNTIL NEW STRUCTURAL 
BEAMS ARE FULLY IN PLACE.

REMOVE ALL EXTG GUTTERS AND DOWNSPOUTS

COMPLETELY REMOVE ROOF STRRRRRUUUUCUCUCTUREC

CCCC

C

DD POST AND PIERS.  SHORE 
RITY UNTIL NEW STRUCTURAL 

TSSSSSS

D PPOOOSC
A
B

RRRRR

CC

CCCCCC

C

REMOVE ALL EXTG GUTTERS AND DOWNSPOUTS 

COMPLETELY REMOVE EXTG INTERMEDIATE WD POST AND PIERS.  SHORE 
AND MAINTAIN COMPLETE STRUCTURAL INTEGRITY UNTIL NEW STRUCTURAL 
BEAMS ARE FULLY IN PLACE. 

COMPLETELY REMOVE ROOF STRUCTURE

COMPLETELY REMOVE EXTG EYEWASH & CAP ALL PLUMBING LINES

RRRRRER D DOWNSPOUTS 

TERMEDIATE WD POST AND PIERS.  SHORE EEE

E

 CAP ALL PLUMBING LINESOVE EXEXEXEXXTGTGTTT  EYEWASH & CAP ALL PLUMBING LINES

COMPLETELY REMOVE ROOF STRUCTURE

COMPLETELY REMOVE ALL EXTG EXTERIOR CONC CURBS & PAVING IN 
THIS AREA

COMPLETELY REMOVE LEAN HOUSE GREENHOUSE

COMPLETELY REMOVE FREESTANDING GREENHOUSE STRUCTURE

COMPLETELY REMOVE EXTG EYEWASH & CAP ALL PLUMBING LINES

CCCCC

COMP
THIS AR

COMP

COMP

C
T

SE GRE

REESTAND

XTG EYEW

ING G

ASH &PLETELY REMOVE ECOMP

EEE

OR CONC CURBS & PAVING IN 

EENHOUSE

GREENHOUSE STRUCTURE

& CAP ALL PLUMBING LINES

COMPLETELY REMOVE EXTG WOOD PERIMETER FENSE

CAREFULLY COORDINATE RELOCATION OF EXTG 
ELECTRICAL DROP W NEW LOCATION, CONFIRM W 
ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS

COMPLETELY REMOVE EXTG GRINDER PUMP ALARM.  
CAREFULLY COORDINATE INSTALLATION OF (2) NEW 
GRINDER PUMP ALARM SYSTEMS

COMPLETLY REMOVE EXTG LIGHT FIXTURE

COMPLETELY REMOVE EXT GAS FURNACE CHIMNEY

CCCCC

CCACC REFULLY COOR
ELECTRICAL DROP 
ELECTRICAL DRAW

COMPLETELY REMO
CAREFULLY COOR
GRINDER PUMP AL

COMPLETLY REMO

COMPLETELY REMO

CCCCC
EE
E

C
C
G

C

C

EEE

ALARM.  
(2) NEW 

ACE CHHIMNEYYYYYY

CCCC

C

CCCC

C

CCC

GENERAL EXTERIOR DEMOLION NOTES
1) REMOVE STRUCTURALLY COMPROMISED HORIZONTAL CLAPBOARD 
SIDING AND/OR WOOD TRIM BOARDS.  REPAIR MINOR CRACKS OR 
SEPARATION LESS THAN 8” IN LENGTH AND WITH NO SEPARATION CREATER 
THAN 1/4” OR PENETRATIONS GREATER THAN 1” IN DAIMETER WITH WATERTIGHT 
HIGH PREFORMANCE, NO--SHRINKING WOOD FILLER.  WHERE PRACTICAL 
CORE OUT AND PLUG LARGER PENETRATIONS, UP TO 3” DIAMETER,  WITH IN-
KIND MATERIAL FLUSH AND UNIFORM WITH VISIBLE SURFACE.

ALL PLANT MATERIAL TO BE REMOVED BY OWNER PORTABLE TOILETS TO BE REMOVED BY OWNER20 of 55

bstewart
Received - first

bstewart
Text Box
2414/4887



T
h

E
T

h
E

 C
a

r
r

i
a

g
e

 H
o

u
s

e
 C

a
r

r
i

a
g

e
 H

o
u

s
e

  
@@

L
a

k
e

w
o

l
d

 
G

a
r

d
e

n
s

 
L

a
k

e
w

o
l

d
 
G

a
r

d
e

n
s

 

Existing Garden Shop

SHEET

Ad.4

  C
O

N
TE

N
T

IN
TE

RI
O

R 
D

EM
O

LI
TIO

N
 IM

A
G

ES
IS

SU
E

PE
RM

IT 
IS

SU
E 

III
  

 
 

 
05

 D
EC

EM
BE

R 
20

22

Existing Horticultural (Activity Space)Existing Horticultural (Activity Space)

S
he

e
t 

 
A

11

EXTG WASTE STACK, NON-FUNCTIONAL, TO REMAIN AS HISTORIC 
ARTIFACT, P&P

COMPLETELY REMOVE TEMPORARTY STRUCTURAL SUPPORTS AND 
ENTIRE WEST WALL OF THE NORTH WING IN THIS ROOM. SHORE AND 
MAINTAIN COMPLETE STRUCTURAL INTEGRITY UNTIL NEW FOUNDATION 
& FRAMED WALL ARE IN PLACE AND ADAQUATE TO TAKE NEW LOADS.  
CAREFULLY SALVAGE INTERIOR BEADBOARD AND EXTERIOR SIDING FOR 
REINSTALLATION

COMPLETELY REMOVE ALL CEILING FIXTURES CONFIRM WITH OWNER 
RETENTION OR DISPOSAL.

COMPLETELY REMOVE ANY & ALL COUNTERS AND WORK BENCHES 
(EXCEPT CUBBIES AT NORHT END)

ALL INTERIOR FIXTURES & FURNISHINGS 
TO BE REMOVED BY OWNER

EXISTING 
EXPOSED 
CONDUIT AND 
SERVICES BOXES 
TO REMAIN 
EXPOSED.  (THIS 
LOCATION 
DOOR BEING 
RESTORED 
TO HISTORIC 
WNDW).  NEW 
SIMILAR AS 
REG’D

EEEEE
AA

N 
S. 
OR

D))))

ERRRRR R 

COMPLETELY REMOVE EXTG ENTRY VESTIBULE, CAREFULLY RETAIN 
ORIGINAL FABRIC BENEATH,  PATCH & REPAIR TO MATCH EXTG ORIGINAL 
SURFACES

EXTG HOSE BIB TO REMAIN. FV FULLY FUNCTIONAL.

.

COMPLETELY REMOVE EXTG GAS-FIRED ROOM HEATER.  FV CONDITION 
& INTEGRITY OF EXTG GAS PIPING, REUSE W APPROVAL OF MEP AND 
CONNECT TO NEW GAS FIRED SPACE HEATER.  ALL NEW CHIMNEY.

COMPLETELY REMOVE EXTG ENTRY VESTIBULE, CAREFULLY RETAIN 
ORIGINAL FABRIC BENEATH,  PATCH & REPAIR TO MATCH EXTG ORIGINAL 
SURFACES 

COMPLETELY REMOVE EXTG ENTRY VESTIBULE, CAREFULLY RETAIN 
ORIGINAL FABRIC BENEATH,  PATCH & REPAIR TO MATCH EXTG ORIGINAL 
SURFACES

ppp

.

C
&
C

CCCCCC
OOO
S

EEEE

.

C
&
C

CCCC
O
CCCCCCC
OOOOO
S

AAAAAAAA

VERIFY 
UNPAINTED 
WOOD DEFINES 
HISTORIC 
WINDOW

COMPLETELY 
REMOVE EXTG 
DOOR & FRAME 
AND EXHAUST 
FAN ASSEMBLY

G 
D 
IT AND 

ES BOXES

 
R 

ALL INTERIOR FIXTURES & EQUIPMENT TO BE REMOVED BY OWNER

COMPLETELY REMOVE SOUTH WALL OF SOUTH WING THROUGHOUT FORMER 
HORTICULTURAL ROOM AND EXTG STAIRWELL ACROSS LOCATION OF NEW 
ADDITION.  FV STRUCTURAL SUPPORT & MAINTIAN FULL & COMPLETE STRUCTURAL 
INTEGRITY.

AAAALALL INTERIOR FIXTURES & RRR

Existing Horticultural (offi ce Stalls)Existing Horticultural (offi ce Stalls)

Peninsula Dog Fanciers Club, 
Inc.

COMPCOMP
HORTICHORTIC
ADDITADDITI
NTEGINTEGR

HISTORIC WD TRIM & FRAMING FOR STALLS,  USE AS TEMPLATE FOR NEW STALL 
PARTITIONS.  REPAIR AND RESTORE AS PRACTICAL OR  REMOVE AND REPLACE IN-
KIND.

NEW STALL DEMISING PARTITION END POSTS TO MATCH REMNANT EXTG END POST. NEW STALL DEMISING PARTITION END POSTS TO MATCH REMNANT EXTG END POST. 
REPLACE EXTG IN-KIND AS NEEDEDREPLACE EXTG IN-KIND AS NEEDED

ORMER ORMER 
NEW NEW 

STRUCTURAL STRUCTURAL 

21 of 55

bstewart
Received - first

bstewart
Text Box
2414/4887



T
h

E
T

h
E

 C
a

r
r

i
a

g
e

 H
o

u
s

e
 C

a
r

r
i

a
g

e
 H

o
u

s
e

  
@@

L
a

k
e

w
o

l
d

 
G

a
r

d
e

n
s

 
L

a
k

e
w

o
l

d
 
G

a
r

d
e

n
s

 

SHEET

Ah.1

  C
O

N
TE

N
T

Hi
st

or
ic

al
 R

ef
er

en
ce

 P
ho

to
gr

ap
hs

Re
nd

er
ed

 E
le

va
tio

ns

IS
SU

E
PE

RM
IT 

IS
SU

E 
III

  
 

 
 

05
 D

EC
EM

BE
R 

20
22

55  North Rendered ElevationNorth Rendered Elevation

22  South Rendered ElevationSouth Rendered Elevation

44  West Rendered ElevationWest Rendered Elevation

33  East Rendered ElevationEast Rendered Elevation

S
he

e
t 

 
A

14

11  Historical Photo ReferencesHistorical Photo References

a                          b             ca                          b             c

22 of 55

bstewart
Received - first

bstewart
Text Box
2414/4887



T
h

E
T

h
E

 C
a

r
r

i
a

g
e

 H
o

u
s

e
 C

a
r

r
i

a
g

e
 H

o
u

s
e

  
@@

L
a

k
e

w
o

l
d

 
G

a
r

d
e

n
s

 
L

a
k

e
w

o
l

d
 
G

a
r

d
e

n
s

 

      project      project

Northorth

11  Main Floor PlanMain Floor Plan
  1/4” = 1’ - 0”1/4” = 1’ - 0”

true north
true north

SHEET

A1.1

  C
O

N
TE

N
T

M
A

IN
 F

LO
O

R 
PL

A
N

  
IS

SU
E

PE
RM

IT 
IS

SU
E 

III
  

 
 

 
05

 D
EC

EM
BE

R 
20

22

GARDEN SHOP 1.01

ADMISSIONS 1.02VESTIBULE 1.03

HALL 1.06

STALL I 1.08 STALL II 1.09 STALL III 1.10
SHARED OFFICE                                        SHARED OFFICE                                           SHARED OFFICE

MAIN WC 1.05

OFF VESTIBULE 
1.04

ACTIVITIES SPACE  1.21                                                        HORT. ROOM 1.22   

W21

W01

D25

W02

W
03

W
04

W
05

W
09

W08W08 W14W14 W13W13

W
10

 b
W

10
 b

W
11

W
11

W
12

W
12

W10 aW10 a

D21b
D21a

D22b
D22a

D24

D23D23

D01D01

D02D02

D1
1

D1
1

D0
3b

D0
3b

D0
3a

D0
3a

D0
3c

D0
3c

D0
9

D0
7

D1
3

D12

S
he

e
t 

 
1

†

†

† HB1

HB2

HB3

4
A3.1

3
A2.1

1
A2.1

1
A2.2

1
A3.1

3
A2.2

2
A3.1

4
A3.1

1
A3.1

2
A3.1

3
A3.1

3
A3.2

3
A3.1

1
A3.2

3
A3.2

1
A4.4

0’    1’   2’    3’   4’    5’     10’           15’              25’

D1
4

D15 ABOVE
D16 BELOW

CLOS

1.11

CNTR ACNTR A

C
N

TR
 C

C
N

TR
 C

C
N

TR
 B

C
N

TR
 B

CNTR DCNTR D

DESK

 PLANTING TERRACE

WC1
L1

SK1SK1

SK3

SK2

FR1FR1

STAIR 1STAIR 1

STAIR 2STAIR 2

STAIR 4STAIR 4LNDG 1LNDG 1

FX1

FX2 FX3

FX4

FX5

M KITCH 1.07

THE PLAZA

North WingNorth Wing

So
ut

h 
W

in
g

So
ut

h 
W

in
g

+ 22’ - 2”

+
 2

8’
 - 

13 / 4”
++

  9
’ -

 8
”

9’
 - 

8”

+
 2

0’
 - 

21 / 4”

+ 48’ - 5”

GENERAL NOTES

1. EXTERIOR DIMENSIONS TYPICALLY TO THE INSIDE EDGE OF CLAPBOARDS

DRAWING KEY
  EXISTING CONSTRUCTION

    NEW CONSTRUCTION

       EDGE OF OBJECT ABOVE

C  L L C  L L
C  L LC  L L

EXTG SURFACE 
MOUNTED HOSE BIB TO 
REMAIN. SEE 2/AX.1

(3)EXTG SLIDING BARN 
DOOR - INSPECT, 
EVALUATE RESTORE TO 
ORIGINAL CONDITION 
P&P

1
A4.3

C
1 

C
2 

 
 C

3 
  C

4 
  C

5 
  C

6 
  C

7 
  C

8 
  C

9
C

UB
BI

ES

4’ - 0”4’ - 0”
EQ     EQEQ     EQ

REFURBISH & REFURBISH & 
PERMANENTLY SEAL PERMANENTLY SEAL 
EXTG ATTIC ACCESS EXTG ATTIC ACCESS 
PANEL, P&PPANEL, P&P

EMERGENCY EYE-WASH  W EMERGENCY EYE-WASH  W 
FACCETFACCET

WALL HUNG UTILITY SINK,WALL HUNG UTILITY SINK,
LIP OF SINK 36”AFFLIP OF SINK 36”AFF

UNDERCNTR SEED REFRIGUNDERCNTR SEED REFRIG

EAST CNTR

WEST CNTR

N
O

RT
H 

C
N

TR

SO
UT

H 
C

N
TR

SO
UT

H 
C

N
TR

REFURBISH EXTG OH REFURBISH EXTG OH 
CAB, P&PCAB, P&P

WALL HUNG UTILITY SINK, LIP OF WALL HUNG UTILITY SINK, LIP OF 
SINK 33”AFF SINK 33”AFF 

WALL HUNG UTILITY SINK, LIP OF WALL HUNG UTILITY SINK, LIP OF 
SINK 36”AFFSINK 36”AFF

FORCED AIR GAS FURNACE 
ABOVE 

SEMI-RECESSED AED CABINET SEMI-RECESSED AED CABINET 

SE
 C

N
TR

HALL CNTR

M KITCHCNTRM KITCHCNTR

OH CAB

O
H 

O
H 

C
A

B
C

A
B

O
H 

C
A

B

OH CAB OH CAB

W22

EP2

EXTG
EP1

NEW GRINDER PUMP 1 ALARM 
(LG RESPONSIBILITY)

NEW GRINDER PUMP 2 
ALARM(REPLACEMENT) P&I BY 
LOCAL AUTHORITY

EXTG ELEC METER TO GRINDER 
PUMP 2 CONNECTION BY LOCAL 
AUTHORITY

EXTG GAS METER

EXTG ELEC METER  

EXTG THERMOSTAT, 
CONFIRM STATUS W MEP 
DOCUMENTS

REFURBISH EXTG REFURBISH EXTG 
ATTIC ACCESS ATTIC ACCESS 
HATCH MAKE HATCH MAKE 
FUNCTIONAL, P&PFUNCTIONAL, P&P

2
A3.2

5
A3.1

W2W2W2

5
A3.1

1
A3.2

FORCED AIR GAS 
FURNACE ABOVE

C  L L

REFURBISH (2) EXTG REFURBISH (2) EXTG 
NICHES PER ORIGINAL NICHES PER ORIGINAL 
CONDITION, CONDITION, 
SEE 12&17/ AX.1SEE 12&17/ AX.1

GRAVEL PATHWAY, SLOPE FROM BLDGGRAVEL PATHWAY, SLOPE FROM BLDG

LOW ROCKRYLOW ROCKRY

TERRACE WALKWAYTERRACE WALKWAY

4’ WD GATE4’ WD GATE

6’ WD PERIMETER FENCE6’ WD PERIMETER FENCE

2424xx2424xx2 INCH CONC 2 INCH CONC 
PAVERS IN 4” SAND BED PAVERS IN 4” SAND BED 
SLOPE TO DRAIN AWAY SLOPE TO DRAIN AWAY 
FROM STRUCTUREFROM STRUCTURE

CONT WD HANDRAIL 2 NOM 36” CONT WD HANDRAIL 2 NOM 36” 
ABOVE NOSE OF STAIR, SECURE ABOVE NOSE OF STAIR, SECURE 
TO STRUCTURE, EXTEND BEYOND TO STRUCTURE, EXTEND BEYOND 
TOP & BTTM TREAD MIN 12”TOP & BTTM TREAD MIN 12”

8 EQ RISERS, MAX 7”, FV8 EQ RISERS, MAX 7”, FV
7 EQ TREADS 11”7 EQ TREADS 11”

OFFICE WALKWAYOFFICE WALKWAY

CONT FILL TROUGH RECESS W HIGH CONT FILL TROUGH RECESS W HIGH 
IMPACT CLR POLYMER,  FLUSH & IMPACT CLR POLYMER,  FLUSH & 
UNIFORM W ADJACENT CONC FIN FLRUNIFORM W ADJACENT CONC FIN FLR

(2) FLR TO CLG 2(2) FLR TO CLG 2xx4 POSTS, 4 POSTS, 
TYPTYP

1 21 2xx4 PILASTER @ ENDS4 PILASTER @ ENDS

HALF HGT LOW STALL WALL HALF HGT LOW STALL WALL 
W CONT BEADBRD W NOM W CONT BEADBRD W NOM 
22xx4 OPEN SPACED PICKETS, 4 OPEN SPACED PICKETS, 
TO CLG (MATCH HISTORICAL TO CLG (MATCH HISTORICAL 
SIZE AND SPACING).  LET SIZE AND SPACING).  LET 
PICKETS INTO CONT 2X WD PICKETS INTO CONT 2X WD 
CAP TRIM AS PER EXTG CAP TRIM AS PER EXTG 
DETAILDETAIL

SLOPESLOPE

SLOPESLOPE

2
A3.2

MW1

PTD/WR

18x48 M

   
 

   
 3

8”38
”

SK5

12
”

12
”

1
A4.5

4/A4.5

RESTORE & REBURBISH EXTG WD RESTORE & REBURBISH EXTG WD 
CUBBIES (HIST STORAGE BINS), CUBBIES (HIST STORAGE BINS), 
P&P, SEE 13/AX.1P&P, SEE 13/AX.1

NOM 6” RAISED INSULATED BASE, NOM 6” RAISED INSULATED BASE, 
SEE 5/A4.3SEE 5/A4.3

COMPLETELY REBUILD SECTION COMPLETELY REBUILD SECTION 
OF NORTH WING EXTERIOR WALL, OF NORTH WING EXTERIOR WALL, 

NOM 6” RAISED NOM 6” RAISED 
INSULATED BASE, SEE INSULATED BASE, SEE 
5/A4.35/A4.3

SOUTH WING SOUTH WING 
ADDITION, MATCH ADDITION, MATCH 
EXTG CONSTR & EXTG CONSTR & 
MATERIALS, MATERIALS, 

2/A4.6
2x4 2x4 PARTITION STUDS ON SIDE, PARTITION STUDS ON SIDE, 
BEADBRD BOTH SIDES THIS WALL W BEADBRD BOTH SIDES THIS WALL W 55//44xx6” 6” 
SOLID WD CAP & 1SOLID WD CAP & 1xx4 APRON, P&P 4 APRON, P&P 

2x4 2x4 PARTITION, , SET FLUSH PARTITION, , SET FLUSH 
W FACE OF LVL ‘SKIRT W FACE OF LVL ‘SKIRT 
BRD, SOLIDBRD, SOLID  WD BEABRD WD BEABRD 
ADMISIONS SIDE ONLYADMISIONS SIDE ONLY

+  +271.16  (SLAB HGT VARIES, DRAINS TO 
DOORS) 

EXTG TROUGH RECESSEXTG TROUGH RECESS

+ +271.99  (SLAB HGT 
VARIES, DRAINS TO TROUGH

+ +271.72  (SLAB HGT 
VARIES, DRAINS TO TROUGH

EXTG SANITARY LINE TO REMAIN 
SEE 1/AX.1

REFURBISH OR REPLACE IN-KIND 
EXTG WD COVER TO REMNANT 
PLUMBING LINES, SEE 8/AX.1

LOCATE & RESTORE EXTG (OR 
REPLACE IN-KIND WHERE NON-
EXTG)  FLR GUIDES, SEE 9/AX.1

2424xx2424xx2 INCH CONC 2 INCH CONC 
PAVERS IN 4” SAND BED PAVERS IN 4” SAND BED 
SLOPE TO DRAIN AWAY SLOPE TO DRAIN AWAY 
FROM STRUCTUREFROM STRUCTURE

GRAB BARS, SEE 
3/A0.1

23 of 55

bstewart
Received - first

bstewart
Text Box
2414/4887



T
h

E
T

h
E

 C
a

r
r

i
a

g
e

 H
o

u
s

e
 C

a
r

r
i

a
g

e
 H

o
u

s
e

  
@@

L
a

k
e

w
o

l
d

 
G

a
r

d
e

n
s

 
L

a
k

e
w

o
l

d
 
G

a
r

d
e

n
s

 

11  Upper Floor PlanUpper Floor Plan
  1/4” = 1’ - 0”1/4” = 1’ - 0”

SHEET

A1.2

  C
O

N
TE

N
T

 U
PP

ER
 F

LO
O

R 
PL

A
N

IS
SU

E
PE

RM
IT 

IS
SU

E 
III

  
 

 
 

05
 D

EC
EM

BE
R 

20
22

END OFFICE 2.01

W34 W35

W
36

W
37

UPPR KITCH 2.03

MID OFFICE 2.02

UPPER WC 2.04          SUPPLY RM 2.05 TOP LNDG 2.06TOP LNDG 2.06

LOFT OFFICE 2.07

ATTIC STORAGE 2.22

W
33

W
33

W
32

W
32

W38

W
31

W
31

D3
3

D3
1

D32

up

up

D34

S
he

e
t 

 
2

3
A2.1

1
A2.1

1
A2.2

1
A3.1

3
A2.2

2
A3.1

4
A3.1

1
A3.1

2
A3.1

4
A3.2

5
A3.1

1
A3.2

7
A4.4

L2L2

DW1

STAIR 1STAIR 1

STAIR 2STAIR 2

STAIR 4STAIR 4LNDG 1LNDG 1

FX7

STAIR 3STAIR 3 LNDG 2LNDG 2

WC2WC2

MS1MS1

SK4SK4

FR2

FX6

FX8

THE PLAZA

North WingNorth Wing

So
ut

h 
W

in
g

So
ut

h 
W

in
g

5
A3.1

ATTIC  UNFINISHED 2.21

      project      project

Northorth
true north
true north

0’    1’   2’    3’   4’    5’     10’           15’              25’

LO
FT

 L
N

D
G

 2
.0

8
LO

FT
 L

N
D

G
 2

.0
8

2
A3.2

CLG ABOVECLG ABOVE
12:12              FLAT              12:1212:12              FLAT              12:12

CLG ABOVECLG ABOVE
++1.5:12              FLAT              1.5:12              FLAT              ++1.5:121.5:12

C
LG

 A
BO

V
E

C
LG

 A
BO

V
E

12
:1

2 
   

   
   

   
  F

LA
T 

   
   

   
   

   
2:

12
12

:1
2 

   
   

   
   

  F
LA

T 
   

   
   

   
   

2:
12

2
A3.1

5
A3.1

4
A3.1

3
A3.1

3
A3.1

1
A3.2

3
A3.1

3
A3.2

3
A3.2 STEP UP 

+ 7”, FV

SET EDGE BRD TIGHT & SET EDGE BRD TIGHT & 
FLUSH W EXTG FLRGFLUSH W EXTG FLRG

  FILL JOIST CAVITY FILL JOIST CAVITY 
@ SLOPED CLG W @ SLOPED CLG W 
CLOSED CELLL FOAM CLOSED CELLL FOAM 
INSULATION  R-45,TYPINSULATION  R-45,TYP

REFINISH EXTG 
T&G 
FLRG, SEAL

 T&G FLRG SIM  T&G FLRG SIM 
TO TO 

 EXTG, SEAL EXTG, SEAL

NEW FUNCTIONAL HATCH IN NEW FUNCTIONAL HATCH IN 
EXTG OPNG. FRAME EDGES W/ EXTG OPNG. FRAME EDGES W/ 
NOM 3” BRD. INFILL FIELD FLUSH & NOM 3” BRD. INFILL FIELD FLUSH & 
UNIFORM TO MATCH ADJACENT UNIFORM TO MATCH ADJACENT 
FLG. W 1FLG. W 11313//1616 ROUND RECESSED  ROUND RECESSED 
PULL RINGPULL RINGCLG ABOVECLG ABOVE

12:12                    FLAT                    12:1212:12                    FLAT                    12:12

SOILD WD EDGE 
BRD, SEAL

FLR SHEATHING, 
SEAL

HWH

2
A3.2
2

A3.2

2
A3.2

MW2

OH OH 
CABCAB

GENERAL DIMENSION NOTES.
1. COORDINATE DIMENSIONS WITH EXISTING CONDITIONS.  
PLACEMENT OF SOME WALL IN EAST HALF OF SOUTH WING ARE 
BASED ON HISTORIC CONDITIONS THAT ARE EVIDENT IN OUTLINES 
VISIBLE IN EXTANT WD FLOORING. 

+12’ - 512’ - 511//22””

+1
2’

 - 
4

12
’ -

 4
11 //22””

+3
’ -

 1”
3’

 - 
1”

+7’ - 8”7’ - 8”

4’
 - 

3”
’ -

 3
”

CC  L L

5’
 - 

6”
’ -

 6
”

CC  L L

+1
4’

 - 
4”

14
’ -

 4
”

1
A4.6

GAS HEATER CHIMNEY, 
SEE MECHANICAL   FOR 
REQMNTS.  MAINTAIN 
MANUF & CODE 
REQD MIN CHIMNEY 
CLEARANCES TO 
ROOFING.  

GAS HEATER CHIMNEY, 
SEE MECHANICAL   FOR 
REQMNTS.  MAINTAIN 
MANUF & CODE 
REQD MIN CHIMNEY 
CLEARANCES TO 
ROOFING.  

HISTORIC CONC 
FLUE PENETRATION 
SURROUND TO REMAIN. 
PLUG TOP PORTION 
NOM 4” FLUSH & 
UNIFORM W TOP 
SURFACE.  

D35

FACE OF STUD @ 
STEM WALL BELOW

FACE OF STUD @ 
STEM WALL BELOW

MIN 3” CLOSED CELLL FOAM INSULATION 
TIGHT TO SHEATHING, R-18,TYP

MIN R-30 FIBER BATT INSULATION,TYP

MIN R-21 FIBER BATT INSULATION @ END WALL

FILL JOIST CAVITY @ SLOPED FILL JOIST CAVITY @ SLOPED 
CLG W CLOSED CELLL CLG W CLOSED CELLL 
FOAM INSULATION  R-45,TYPFOAM INSULATION  R-45,TYP

  FILL JOIST CAVITY @ SLOPED FILL JOIST CAVITY @ SLOPED 
CLG W CLOSED CELLL FOAM CLG W CLOSED CELLL FOAM 
INSULATION  R-45,TYPINSULATION  R-45,TYP

CONT LINOLEUM CONT LINOLEUM 
FLRG OVER EXTG FLRG OVER EXTG 
T&G FLRGT&G FLRG

EXTG WD EXTG WD 
FLRG TO FLRG TO 
REMAIN, REMAIN, 
LIGHTLY LIGHTLY 

SAND & SEALSAND & SEAL

24 of 55

bstewart
Received - first

bstewart
Text Box
2414/4887



T
h

E
T

h
E

 C
a

r
r

i
a

g
e

 H
o

u
s

e
 C

a
r

r
i

a
g

e
 H

o
u

s
e

  
@@

L
a

k
e

w
o

l
d

 
G

a
r

d
e

n
s

 
L

a
k

e
w

o
l

d
 
G

a
r

d
e

n
s

 

SHEET

A5.3

  C
O

N
TE

N
T

RO
O

FI
N

G
 D

ET
A

IL
S

IS
SU

E
PE

RM
IT 

IS
SU

E 
III

  
 

 
 

05
 D

EC
EM

BE
R 

20
22

S
he

e
t 

 
18

22  Cont Ventilation Underlayment DetailCont Ventilation Underlayment Detail
  ntsnts

11  Shingle Application DetailShingle Application Detail
ntsnts

33  Hip & Ridge Application DetailHip & Ridge Application Detail
  ntsnts

55  Saddle Flashing Application DetailSaddle Flashing Application Detail
  ntsnts

44  Valley Metal Application DetailValley Metal Application Detail
ntsnts

66  Hip & Ridge Application DetailHip & Ridge Application Detail
  ntsnts

Continuous ventilation 
product

APA plywd sheathing

APA plywd sheathing.  
Match thkness with 
solid wd at eaves

APA plywd sheathing.  
Match thkness with 
solid wd at eaves

88  Shingle Course Alignment DetailShingle Course Alignment Detail
  ntsnts

77  Valley Flashing DetailValley Flashing Detail
ntsnts

99  Roof Projection/Penetration DetailRoof Projection/Penetration Detail
  ntsnts

10 10   Low Slope to steep Slope Roof DetailLow Slope to steep Slope Roof Detail  

    ntsnts

Continuous ventilation 
product on

25 of 55

bstewart
Received - first

bstewart
Text Box
2414/4887



T
h

E
T

h
E

 C
a

r
r

i
a

g
e

 H
o

u
s

e
 C

a
r

r
i

a
g

e
 H

o
u

s
e

  
@@

L
a

k
e

w
o

l
d

 
G

a
r

d
e

n
s

 
L

a
k

e
w

o
l

d
 
G

a
r

d
e

n
s

 

SHEET

A5.4

  C
O

N
TE

N
T

D
ET

A
IL

S
IS

SU
E

PE
RM

IT 
IS

SU
E 

III
  

 
 

 
05

 D
EC

EM
BE

R 
20

22

S
he

e
t 

 
19

22  South Wing Knee Bracket Elevation DetailsSouth Wing Knee Bracket Elevation Details
  1111//22” = 1’ - 0”” = 1’ - 0”

66  Top Hinged Storm Wndw  ImageTop Hinged Storm Wndw  Image
   nts nts

11  North Wing Knee Bracket Elevation DetailsNorth Wing Knee Bracket Elevation Details
  1111//22” = 1’ - 0”” = 1’ - 0”

aa  FrontFront      bb  SideSide aa  FrontFront      bb  SideSide

28
” 

 *

24
” 

EQ     EQEQ     EQ EQ     EQEQ     EQ

33 //44”
 ” 

1”
  

   
1”

1”
  

   
1”

1”
  

   
1”

1”
  

   
1”

24”  *

191/2” 

44
” 

3311 //44”
 ” 

45° 45°

77  Interior Beadbrd Transition TrimInterior Beadbrd Transition Trim
  half sizehalf size

33  Extant Knee Bracket Remnant ReferencesExtant Knee Bracket Remnant References    

51/2” x 51/2”, P&P

31/2” x 31/2”, P&P

15/8” x 51/2”, P&P

FRAMING, MIN 3 STUDS

RAKE OR FASCIA BRD FRAMING, MIN 3 STUDS

RAKE OR FASCIA BRD

51/2” x 51/2”, P&P

31/2” x 31/2”, P&P

15/8” x 51/2”, P&P

aa      NE corner SNE corner So.o. Wing Wing              bb  NE corner NNE corner No.o. Wing Wing      cc  NW corner NNW corner No.o. Wing Wing

(2) 1/4” DIA x 6” LAG SCREWS

(1) 1/4” DIA x 4.5” LAG SCREW

(1) SDWC15600, SINK FLUSH

(1) 1/4” DIA x 4.5” LAG SCREW

(2) 1/4” DIA x 6” LAG SCREWS

(1) 1/4” DIA x 4.5” LAG SCREW

(1) SDWC15600, SINK FLUSH

(1) 1/4” DIA x 4.5” LAG SCREW

55  Gutter Installation DetailGutter Installation Detail
  ntsnts

44  Gutter DetailGutter Detail
  ntsnts

* (2) Dormer gable end knee brackets Hgt: 20” Length: 16”  Rake or Fascia: 141/2”

EXTG STRUCTURE

EXTG BEADBRD

INSIDE FACE OF NEW 
STRUCTURE MAY 
NOT ALWAYS ALIGN 
WITH INSIDE FACE 
OF EXTG STRUCTURE

CONT VERTICAL 
TRANSITION TRIM 
BRD, P&P

NEW STRUCTURE

NEW OR 
REINSTALLED 
HISTORIC BEADBRD, 
P&P 

1/8” BEVEL, TYP

11//44””11//44””

3”

211/2”  *

18” 

CONT COAT INTERIOR 
OF GUTTER W EXTERIOR 
GRADE EPOXY PAINT

a ALIGNED             b OFF-SET

SOLID STEEL HEAVY DUTY STORM WINDOW HANGER, 
SATIN BLACK FINISH, TYP 2 PER WINDOWSATIN BLACKK FINISH, TYP 

88  Historic Window Detail w StormHistoric Window Detail w Storm
   nts nts

WEATHER SEAL ALL HISTORIC & 
NEW REPLICA WINDOWS

2 PER WINDOWCCCCCCCCCKKKKKK K K K FIF NISH, TYP 

*STRUCTURAL
REVIEWED 12-6-2022

26 of 55

bstewart
Received - first

bstewart
Text Box
2414/4887



27 of 55

jkubitza
Text Box
Attachment 4. 



28 of 55



29 of 55

jkubitza
Text Box
Attachment 5. 



30 of 55



31 of 55



32 of 55



33 of 55



34 of 55



LANDMARKS AND HERITAGE ADVISORY BOARD 
 

Thursday, November 21, 2002 – 7:00 p.m. 
Lakewood City Hall Council Chambers 

 
M I N U T E S 

 
Present:  Richard Densley; Donnie Weeks; Cyrus Happy; Walter Neary; Wayne Herstad; 
E. Janet McDonald; Jack Avril; Anita Booker-Hay, Lakewood Preservation Officer; 
Elizabeth Anderson, Consultant; Suzi Riley, Recorder 
 
Guests:  Glenn Spieth; Dr. and Mrs. Craig Gunter, owners of the Boatman-Ainsworth 
house; Nancy Dilworth, representing Friends of Lakewold  
 
Absent:  None 
 
 
Chairman Walter Neary called the meeting to order at 7:27 p.m.  The meeting started late 
because staff was unable to get the Audio-Visual equipment in the Chambers to operate.  
Although a Public Hearing is to be taped in its entirety, the Board chose to proceed with 
its business and to maintain a written record of the Public Hearing proceedings.  
 
The Board members and guests recited the Pledge of Allegiance to the flag. 
 
Richard Densley moved and Wayne Herstad seconded a motion to approve the minutes 
as they were presented.  The motion passed by a unanimous vote.  The minutes reflected 
that Mrs. Weeks was to get back to Mrs. Booker-Hay with information on the outcome of 
her meeting with Donna Casey regarding the RhodesLeigh gate.  Mrs. Weeks noted that 
she had not yet contacted Mrs. Booker-Hay with that information.  
 
Mr. Neary commented that the City and its Landmarks and Heritage Board were making 
history at this meeting by approving new properties as designated local historic sites.  He 
explained that the Board is new at this process and the initial designations had taken 
longer than anticipated, and he thanked the Board and the applicants for their patience. 
 
As the Public Hearing portion of the meeting began, Mr. Neary briefly reviewed proper 
etiquette by participants.  He asked speakers to identify themselves when speaking and he 
reviewed with the Board their purpose:  To receive evidence and hear argument only on 
the issues of (1) whether the historic resource meets the criteria for designation of 
landmark or community landmark as specified in the Lakewood Municipal Code Chapter 
2.48.060 and merits designation as a landmark or community landmark, and (2) the 
significant features of the landmark.  He explained that no other issues were appropriate 
for discussion during the Public Hearing.   
 

35 of 55

jkubitza
Text Box
Attachment 6. 



He explained he would follow three steps during the proceeding:  (1) Read into the record 
the information contained in the staff report (2) allow comments from the owner or other 
interested party with regard to the two issues to be considered and (3) call for the 
question of whether or not the property met the criteria for designation. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING ON LAKEWOLD GARDENS: 
The second Public Hearing for the evening involved Lakewold Gardens.  The Hearing 
was called to order at 7:42 p.m. 
 
Elizabeth Anderson, consultant to the Landmarks and Heritage Board, presented the staff 
report relevant to the designation of Lakewold Garden as a local historic site.  The 
property at 12317 Gravelly Lake Drive was nominated by Friends of Lakewold Gardens 
and all procedures surrounding the nomination had been followed appropriately.  Mrs. 
Anderson indicated that this was a fascinating property with a long history and included 
ten acres.  The gardens are a significant element within the property.   
 
The house was built in 1910 and had gone through some changes, especially in the 
1950’s , but it remained true from a period arts and craft shingle dwelling to a more 
formal Georgian styled home.  The home/grounds reflect the style of the William and 
Geoffery Platt, noted building architects, and Thomas Church, renowned landscape 
architect.   The interior of the house was remodeled to a more elaborate style, but the 
house retains its structural integrity regarding room forms.  The house demonstrates a 
good case for retaining its integrity. 
 
The gardens surrounding the home make it truly unique.  They incorporate a flowing 
application and include special features of their own.   
 
The local history of the house as detailed in the application was summarized. 
 
Mrs. Anderson reminded Board members and guests that designation as a local historic 
site allowed a property to be identified with a special plaque and allowed the homeowner 
to take advantage of special tax relief. 
 
Mr. Neary asked Ms. Nancy Dilworth to speak as a representative of the applicant 
organization, Friends of Lakewold.  She stated that she appreciated the intent of the 
Board to preserve properties for the future. 
 
Mrs. Weeks inquired of the process to be followed when seeking tax relief.  Mrs. 
Anderson reported that the County handled the paperwork associated with a request for 
tax relief, but a request was approved through the Landmarks and Heritage Board as 
facilitated by the staff.  The Board review proposed  it work to ensure the project  falls 
within the parameters of state law and that it does not adversely affect the historical value 
of the property. 
 
Mr. Neary asked if there were comments by the public, and Mr. Glenn Spieth of 5928 
Steilacoom Blvd. stated that he fully agreed with the choices selected by the Board as 

36 of 55



their initial proposed designations.  He requested that his comments be ‘amended’ to the 
public comments of the Boatman Ainsworth house.  He felt it was an excellent first 
choice and that Lakewold Gardens was an excellent second choice.  He stated as a 
member of the public, “I heartily agree with both nominations.” 
 
Walter reiterated that the process followed by the Board is set up to safeguard the 
properties in Lakewood which may have historic value. 
 
Mr. Cyrus Happy made a motion to designate Lakewold Gardens as the second local 
historic site designated by the Landmarks and Heritage Advisory Board.  He said, “ I 
move that the Landmarks and Heritage Board find that the Lakewold Gardens meets 
criteria for significance in accordance with the criteria set forth in the Lakewood 
Municipal Code and that the property be designated to the Lakewood Historic Register.” 
 
Mrs. Weeks seconded the motion. 
 
The Board voted unanimously to pass the motion.  There were seven yes votes; there 
were no no votes. 
 
Mr. Neary stated that within 14 days of the Public Hearing, a written designation report 
will be prepared by staff to include: (1) the boundaries of the resource and other 
descriptive identifying information (2) two significant features and information that the 
agency deems appropriate; findings of fact and reasons supporting the designation with 
specific reference to the criteria and (4) a statement that no significant feature may be 
changed without first obtaining a certificate of appropriateness form the Agency pursuant 
to the provisions of the chapter.  The agency report shall be mailed to the owner, to 
interested persons of record and the City Manager within five days after it is issued.  A 
copy of the Agency’s designation shall be filed with the appropriate city office together 
with a legal description of the designated resource and notification that the provisions of 
this chapter apply. 
 
The Public Hearing on the Lakewold Gardens property was closed at 8:00 p.m. 
 
The Board took a brief recess and reconvened at 8:13 p.m. 
 
  

37 of 55



38 of 55

jkubitza
Text Box
Attachment 7. 



39 of 55



40 of 55



41 of 55



42 of 55



43 of 55



44 of 55

jkubitza
Text Box
Attachment 8. 



45 of 55



46 of 55



47 of 55



48 of 55



49 of 55



 
 
TO: Landmarks and Heritage Advisory Board 
 
FROM: Josh Kubitza, Associate Planner 
 
DATE: February 09, 2023 
 
SUBJECT: Reports by Historic Preservation Officer or Staff 
 
 
Lakewood Touring Map Update 
There has been no update to the Lakewood touring map as staff continues to reach out to the Nisqually 
Tribe and Clover Park School District. It is recommended that the Board discuss next steps after 
reviewing the City Council Approved 2023 work plan.  
  
LHAB 2023 Workplan  
The City Council approved the LHAB 2023 Workplan at the January 17, 2023 meeting. The approved 
workplan is attached.  
 
Heritage Tree Code Update 
On March 1, 2023, the heritage tree code update to LMC Chapter 2.48 Protection and Preservation of 
Landmarks goes into effect.  
 
The purpose of the heritage tree designation is to ensure additional measures of protection and 
maintenance for trees with unique characteristics, historical importance, or cultural significance.  Any 
tree may be designated as a heritage tree due to its historical, cultural, or environmental significance to 
the community. Projects could receive various development incentives for the preservation of heritage 
trees. 
 
The heritage tree designation and nomination are the same process as the Lakewood Landmark and 
Community Landmark designation and nomination processes. City Council shall be the final authority in 
approving a nomination.  
 
The heritage tree nomination application is required to include a short description of the tree, reason 
for designation, and an arborist report identifying the current condition of the tree and maintenance 
needs. 
 
The updates to LMC 2.48 Protection and Preservation of Landmarks is attached to this memo.  
 

50 of 55



EXHIBIT A 

Amendments to Lakewood Comprehensive Plan and Municipal Code 
 
Sections and portions of sections of the Lakewood Municipal Code not included below remain 
unchanged and in effect. 
 

Lakewood Municipal Code 
 

Chapter 2.48 
PROTECTION AND PRESERVATION OF LANDMARKS 

Sections: 
2.48.010    Purpose. 
2.48.020    Definitions. 
2.48.030    Landmarks and Heritage Advisory Board created. 
2.48.035    Powers of Lakewood Landmarks and Heritage Advisory Board. 
2.48.040    Designation criteria. 
2.48.050    Nomination procedure. 
2.48.060    Designation procedure. 
2.48.070    Certificate of appropriateness procedure. 
2.48.080    Evaluation of economic impact. 
2.48.090    Appeal procedure. 
2.48.110    Penalties for violating this chapter. 
2.48.120    Special valuation for historic properties. 
2.48.130    Severability. 
2.48.140    Retroactive approval of acts. 

 
2.48.040 Designation criteria. 

*** 
D.  A tree may be designated as a heritage tree due to its historical, cultural, or 
environmental significance to the community.  The purpose of the heritage tree designation 
is to ensure additional measures of protection and maintenance for trees with unique 
characteristics, historical importance, or cultural significance. The nomination and 
designation process shall follow LMC 2.48.050 and LMC 2.48.060. Heritage trees are not 
subject to LMC 2.48.070. All heritage trees shall be retained unless allowed to be removed 
per LMC Chapter 18A.70 Article III Tree Preservation. 
 
A complete application for heritage tree nomination and designation shall include the 
following information: 
 

1. A short description of the tree(s), including the address or location, species, and size 
(height, crown spread, and DBH);  

2. Reason for designation as a heritage tree(s) including special characteristics of the 
tree and/or site; and 

3. A report completed by an ISA Certified Arborist to identify the tree’s characteristics, 
current condition, and maintenance needs. 

 
  

51 of 55



CITY OF LAKEWOOD 

LANDMARKS AND HERITAGE ADVISORY BOARD (LHAB) 

2022 SIGNIFICANT ACCOMPLISHMENTS and 2023 WORK PLAN 

Members 

Glen Spieth 

Joan Cooley  

Beth Campbell 

Christina Manetti 

Mark Hayes 

Council Liaison 

Paul Bocchi 

Staff Support 

Jessica Olson, Development Services Manager 

Josh Kubitza, Associate Planner 

Karen Devereaux, Administrative Assistant 

Meeting Schedule 

Fourth Thursday of every month at 6:00 PM in City Hall, American Lake Room 

Background 

The mission of the City of Lakewood Landmarks and Heritage Advisory Board is to preserve, 

protect and promote the unique heritage and historic resources of the City of Lakewood.  

The Landmarks and Heritage Advisory Board advises the City Council, the City Manager and 

City staff in connection with protection and preservation of historical landmarks in Lakewood 

and establishing procedures for designation and preservation of landmarks. 

2022 Accomplishments 

• Completed preliminary draft edits to the Lakewood Touring Map.

• Recruited new member to LHAB.

2023 Work Plan 

Ongoing Projects 
The Landmarks and Heritage Advisory Board has provided no specific timelines for the 
completion of the following work plan items since this Board is often dependent on the 
follow-through of other public agencies or private property owners.   

 Look for opportunities to expand the historic streets recognition program.

 Continue to work with Clover Park School District to incorporate local Lakewood

History into the Curriculum.

 Research grant opportunities to fund additional historic markers throughout the City

of Lakewood.

 Update the Lakewood Touring map to include historic streets identified through the

recognition program.

 Work with Pretty Gritty Tours to develop a walking tour program for the City of

Lakewood.

 Explore the use of the Community Landmark designation for the Colonial Center;

Western State Hospital; Rhodesleigh House; Villa Carman (Madera); the Flett House;

52 of 55



Little Church on the Prairie; Thornewood Castle; Mueller-Harkins Hangar; Tacoma 

Country and Golf Club; the “H” barn at Fort Steilacoom Park; Bowlero Lanes, 

Denny’s, House of Donuts, the Alan Liddle House and Lake Steilacoom Dam. 

 Work on recruitment of new members to serve on the LHAB.  

 Actively engage with the City of Lakewood Youth Council. 

 Create short, “History of Lakewood” videos to post online to engage with youth and 

online viewers. Consider a partnership with Clover Park School District to create the 

videos or offer them as a resource for students to learn more about local history or 

other nonprofits that have interest in documenting Lakewood history.  

 Update “Lakewood History and Historic Preservation” website to include Heritage 

Tree program information such as the application process, designation criteria; and 

the Board’s role in approving, conditionally approving, or denying applications.   

 Work with Lakewold Gardens on the expansion/modifications to existing structures.   

 In consultation with the communications director, develop relevant historic videos to 

place on the City’s website.  

 

 

Role of the LHAB: 

The role of the LHAB is to assist the City Council in the following areas:   

 

 Designate, preserve, protect, enhance, and perpetuate those sites, buildings, 

districts, structures and objects which reflect significant elements of the City’s, 

county’s, state’s and nation’s cultural, aesthetic, social, economic, political, 

architectural, ethnic, archaeological, engineering, historic and other heritage; 

 Foster civic pride in the beauty and accomplishments of the past; 

 Stabilize and improve the economic values and vitality of landmarks; 

 Protect and enhance the City’s tourist industry by promoting heritage-related 

tourism; 

 Promote the continued use, exhibition and interpretation of significant sites, districts, 

buildings, structures, objects, artifacts, materials and records for the education, 

inspiration and welfare of the people of Lakewood; 

 Promote and continue incentives for ownership and utilization of landmarks; 

 Assist, encourage and provide incentives to public and private owners for 

preservation, restoration, rehabilitation and use of landmark buildings, sites, 

districts, structures and objects; 

 Assist, encourage, and provide technical assistance to public agencies, public and 

private museums, archives and historic preservation associations and other 

organizations involved in the preservation, exhibition, protection and interpretation 

of Lakewood’s heritage; 

 Work cooperatively to identify, evaluate and protect historic resources in furtherance 

of the purposes of this chapter. 

 New assignment, designate City Heritage Trees.  

53 of 55



 
 
TO: Landmarks and Heritage Advisory Board 
 
FROM: Josh Kubitza, Associate Planner 
 
DATE: February 9, 2023 
 
SUBJECT: Election of Chair and Vice-Chair Process 
 
 
I. Background 

The Landmarks and Heritage Advisory Board Bylaws, Section IV, states that the Chair and Vice-Chair shall 
be elected on an annual basis by his/her fellow Board members. 
 
II. Chair, Vice Chair responsibilities 

Consistent with Lakewood Municipal Code Chapter 2.48.030, the Chair: 

A. Shall preside over all meetings of the Board, and retain the full right to vote in all board 
deliberations. 

B Decides all points of order and procedural matters subject to the rules and By-Laws. 
C. May appoint such ad hoc committees as may be established by the Board per Section F to 

conduct research and report on specific matters of interest to the Board.  
D. May appoint, subject to the confirmation by a majority of the Board, such standing 

committees as may be established by the Board to perform its functions in accordance with 
the purpose of protection and preservation of landmarks as found in the Lakewood 
Municipal Code section 2.48.010. 

E. May from time to time appoint members of the Board as Board representatives on joint 
committees made up of representatives of other public and private organizations.  Should 
the member so appointed be authorized to make commitments on behalf of the Board, such 
appointment and the extent of such authority shall be subject to confirmation by a majority 
of the Board. 

 
III. Process for Making Nominations 

  1.  The presiding officer opens the floor for nominations. 
  2.  A board member makes a nomination for a specific office. 
  3.  Nominations do not require a second. 
  4.  A Board Member can nominate himself/herself. 
  5.  A Board Member should not offer more than one nomination until all other Commissioners       
       have had the opportunity to make nominations. 
  6.  The presiding officer can continue presiding, even if he/she is one of the nominees for the 
        office.   
  7.  A Board Member can decline the nomination during the nomination process. 
  8.  After each nomination, the presiding officer repeats the name of the nominee to the 

54 of 55



       Board Members and public. 
  9.  Nominations are taken for successive offices in the order they are listed in the bylaws (Chair 
       and Vice-Chair). 
 10. Motions to close nominations are unnecessary because the nomination process simply 
        continues until no one wishes to make further nominations.  

11. Officers are elected after the presiding officer requests a vote, the board member with the 
       highest number of votes is elected to the office.  

 
 

55 of 55


	LHAB Agenda dated February 9, 2023  Pg 1
	Draft Minutes dated September 22, 2022  Pg 3
	Draft Minutes dated October 27, 2022  Pg 5
	Staff Report re Lakewood Gardens Carriage House Type II Certificate of Appropriateness  Pg 7
	Staff Report by Historic  Preservation Officer  Pg 50
	City Council Approved LHAB 2023 Work Plan  Pg 52
	Election of Chair and Vice-Chair Process  Pg  54

	Return to Agenda: 


